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BABCOCK & BROWN JAPAN PROPERTY TRUST

Babcock & Brown Japan Property Management Limited (‘Responsible Entity’) (ABN 94 111 874 563) is the Responsible Entity of the
Babcock & Brown Japan Property Trust (‘the Trust’) (ARSN 112 799 854). The Responsible Entity is a subsidiary of Babcock & Brown Limited
(‘BNB’) (ACN 108 614 955).

Investments in the Trust are not liabilities of BNB or any entity in the Babcock & Brown Group, and are subject to investment risk including
possible loss of income and capital invested. Neither the Responsible Entity nor any member of the Babcock & Brown Group guarantees the
performance of the Trust or the payment of a particular rate of return on the Trust’s units.

This report is not an offer or invitation for subscription or purchase of or a recommendation of units in the Trust. It does not take into
account the investment objectives, financial situation and particular needs of an investor. Before making an investment in the Trust, an
investor should consider whether such an investment is appropriate to their particular investment needs, objectives and financial
circumstances and consult an investment adviser if necessary.

The Responsible Entity, as the Responsible Entity of the Trust, is entitled to fees for so acting. The Trust and its related corporations,
together with their officers and directors and officers and directors of the Trust, may hold units in the Trust from time to time.

This annual report for the Trust has been prepared to comply with its obligations under the Corporations Act, to ensure compliance with the
ASX Listing Rules and to satisfy the requirements of the Australian accounting standards. The responsibility for preparation of the annual
report and any financial information contained in this annual report rests solely with the directors of the Responsible Entity as the
Responsible Entity of the Trust.



The Babcock & Brown Japan Property Trust (‘the Trust’) is the first Australian listed
property trust with the strategy of investing into the real estate market of Japan, the
world’s second largest economy.

The Trust has interests in a diversified portfolio of office and retail properties located in
the central and greater Tokyo area. The portfolio consists of eight office properties and
four retail properties, representing 52.3% and 47.7% of the total portfolio carrying value
respectively.

The Trust was established on 31 January 2005. The Trust became a registered scheme
under the Corporations Act 2001 on 17 February 2005 and was listed on the Australian
Stock Exchange (‘ASX’) on 4 April 2005.

The Responsible Entity of the Trust is Babcock & Brown Japan Property Management
Limited (a subsidiary of Babcock & Brown). Asset management services in Japan are
generally undertaken by Babcock & Brown Co., Ltd. (also a subsidiary of Babcock &
Brown).

The Board of the Responsible Entity is responsible for protecting the rights and interests
of all investors and is accountable to investors for the overall governance and
management of the Trust.

As at 31 August 2005, the Trust had 1,868 unitholders and a market capitalisation of
approximately $438 million.
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Japan Property Trust



Highlights since IPO

Trust Activities

• Trust listed on 4 April 2005
• Acquired interests in four

retail and eight office
properties for ¥47.3 billion

• Konan Home Centre
completed on schedule
and acquired prior to its
opening on 30 March 2005

BABCOCK & BROWN JAPAN PROPERTY TRUST
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Financial Performance

• Normalised net profit for
the period $6.9 million
vs. PDS $6.1 million

• Net property revenue
ahead of PDS forecast

• Distribution of 2.25 cents
declared compared to
PDS forecast 2.11 cents

• Trust outperforms
benchmark by 18.1%

Property Performance

• Occupancy by area increased
from 96.9% at PDS to
97.2% at 30 June 2005

• 100% renewal rate for leases
expired during the period

• Net increase in area rented
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Dear fellow unitholder,
In my first report as Chairman of Babcock & Brown Japan Property Management Limited, the Responsible Entity
of your Trust, it is pleasing to report to you that for the period to 30 June 2005 the Trust has exceeded the forecasts
set out in the Product Disclosure Statement (‘PDS’) dated 21 February 2005. It is also pleasing that the market
appreciation of the unique character of the Trust is reflected in the strong pricing of units.

The Managing Director’s Report and the Review of Results and Operations set out in detail the positive performance
of the Trust and its portfolio of property interests since its inception.

The Board of the Responsible Entity has formulated, approved and implemented charters and policies for its activities
and for those of the Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee of the Board.The Chairman of the Board and the
Chairman of the Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee are independent directors.

In its meetings since the Trust’s listing, the Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee has, amongst other things,
considered compliance matters. It is pleasing to report that an unqualified audit report was issued in relation to the
audit of the Responsible Entity’s Compliance Plan for the period ended 30 June 2005.

Your Board places compliance with high standards of corporate governance as a significant priority.

The independent directors approved the payment of a performance fee to the Responsible Entity after independent
verification that the calculation was in accordance with the Trust’s Constitution.That fee, which is detailed in the
accounts, reflects the impressive performance of the Trust since listing, both in absolute terms and relative terms.
I should also point out that the level of performance fee provided for in the Constitution is broadly in line with
market practice for listed property trusts (‘LPT’).The actual amount of the fee is a reflection of the absolute unit price
outperformance in the period.The significant increase in the market capitalisation of the Trust since listing, with the
consequence of a payment of the performance fee, was unexpected but gratifying to the Board and management and,
I am certain, to all of our fellow unitholders.

As set out in the Managing Director’s Report and elsewhere in this document, the Trust’s portfolio of property
interests is performing well and accordingly we remain confident that the Trust will meet PDS forecasts for the
2006 financial year.

Thank you for your continued support.

Yours sincerely,

ALLAN McDONALD
Chairman
Babcock & Brown Japan Property Management Limited

Chairman’s Report
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Dear fellow unitholder,
The Trust listed on the ASX in April this year as the first listed entity anywhere in the world outside Japan with a
mandate to invest exclusively in Japanese real estate. The Trust is also the first listed property investment vehicle to
carry the Babcock & Brown name. Coupled with its investment in the Trust alongside other unitholders, this is a
demonstration of the Babcock & Brown group commitment to the continuing success of the Trust.

The market reception that the Trust has received, both from Australian and international investors, has been
outstanding. As described in the PDS, the Trust’s mandate is broad - to invest in the Japanese real estate market - and
it is especially gratifying to see investors’ faith in the ability of management of the Responsible Entity and the affiliated
Japan Manager, Babcock & Brown Co., Ltd., to execute on this mandate.

Results
It is pleasing that in the period from listing to 30 June 2005 the Trust’s results have been ahead of the PDS forecasts,
in terms of net property income, the level of distribution and the level of net profit (after adjusting for some major
non-property items and the performance fee which was reflective of the increase in the market value of the Trust’s
units in the period since listing).

The better than expected underlying performance and lower than expected initial public offering (‘IPO’) and
property acquisition costs, enabled us to pay a higher than forecast distribution for the period to 30 June 2005,
namely 2.25 cents per unit versus a PDS forecast of 2.11 cents per unit.

It is also pleasing that the market has recognised the Trust and its performance, with a total return to unitholders since
allotment of 23% to 30 June 2005, strongly outperforming the market benchmark.

The Trust’s portfolio of property interests has performed slightly better than forecast in the PDS with total occupancy
by area improving from 96.9% at the time of the PDS to 97.2% and gross rents being ahead of PDS forecasts by 0.8%.
Net property income numbers were ahead of PDS forecasts, partly because the properties were acquired earlier than
forecast and partly because of the better than forecast occupancy.

One very heartening aspect of the result was the fact that all of the 21 leases which expired during the period were
renewed and at the same rents. Given that most of the portfolio’s tenants (and all of the office tenants) are on
‘standard’ Japanese leases which roll over every 2 years and are cancellable usually on 6 months’ notice, there has been
understandable concern from some investors who are less familiar with the day-to-day workings of the Japanese real
estate market that there will be a lot of tenant ‘churn’ and resultant income instability.

Our results should give investors comfort that the high fixed and ‘soft’ costs of relocating mean that tenants in
competitive, well-located properties in Japan ordinarily occupy their space for continuous periods that are much
longer than their contractual terms.We will continue to give unitholders regular data confirming that this is the case.

For further detail in relation to the Trust’s results please refer to the Review of Results and Operations commencing
on page 8.

Leverage and Hedging
I would like to take this opportunity to give you some additional perspectives on some technical issues associated
with the structure of the Trust.

Leverage – The level of interest bearing debt on the Trust’s balance sheet is about 52% of the book value of its
property interests. It has been correctly pointed out that this is towards the high-end of the range for LPTs.
What is often missed, however, is that the ability of the Trust’s investment entities to service this debt is the highest
in the LPT sector, the debt service coverage ratio being about 7 times (net profit before interest and tax relative to
interest costs), compared with an average of about 4.5 times for the LPT sector.

Managing Director’s Report
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Capital Hedging – Interest rates in Japan are far lower than in Australia, reflecting, amongst other things, the market’s
expectation that Japan will continue to be a lower inflation economy than Australia.This is reflected also in the
forward exchange rates between the two currencies, which show the A$ depreciating quite sharply against the Yen over
the next 5 years. If the reality unfolds as the markets expect, this is good news for an A$ based investor in the Trust,
as the A$ value of a Yen investment made today will rise.

However, as we all know, reality almost never unfolds exactly as markets expect and your directors have therefore taken
the decision to ‘lock-in’ a proportion of this expected Yen gain against the A$ by hedging approximately 20% of the
Trust’s equity capital from Yen to A$ for an initial period of 5 years.This increases the amount of distributable income
over the term of the hedge, lifting the overall distribution level of the Trust by roughly 1 cent per unit throughout that
period. For reference, the Trust’s PDS forecast distribution for the full year to 30 June 2006 was 8.7 cents, so this
capital hedging benefit is expected to be worth slightly more than 10% of the overall distribution amount, a significant
but not a major contributor to the Trust’s overall performance.

The bulk of the Trust’s equity capital – about 80% - remains unhedged and the Trust therefore retains its essential
character as an investment the value of which should reflect the value of its Yen denominated assets.

In terms of the potential risks and rewards of these hedges, there are two basic scenarios which can unfold: either the
Yen appreciates or the Yen depreciates against the A$ from the levels when the hedges were entered.

In a situation where the Yen appreciates against the A$ the hedge will be ‘out of the money’ when it has to be renewed
(or ‘rolled over’) and that will mean the Trust will likely have to borrow some additional funds to finance the renewal.
Thus, there would be an additional interest cost to the Trust. However, this cost would only relate to the amount by
which the 20% hedge is ‘out of the money’, which in the absence of a complete meltdown of the A$ against the Yen
and/or a massive spike in interest rates, would not be a significant percentage of the Trust’s overall cash flow. In any
event, if this scenario arose, because 80% of the Trust’s equity is unhedged, the A$ value of the Trust’s Yen assets will
have appreciated to exactly the same extent in percentage terms, but of course by a much greater absolute amount.

In the second scenario, where the Yen actually depreciates against the A$, the Trust’s decision to hedge part of its equity
will be (with the wisdom of hindsight) vindicated, as it will have taken advantage of market expectations and harvested
in advance a gain that was expected to materialise but never did.

This is a more wordy explanation than I (and perhaps you!) would have preferred. However, I believe it is important
for investors to understand the detailed thinking behind what your Board believes is both a prudent and appropriate
approach to this issue.We believe that hedging a relatively small part of the equity capital to realise the benefit of a
significant gap in Yen/A$ inflation expectations is a very different matter to hedging, as some other A$ denominated
trusts/funds investing offshore have done, substantially all of the equity capital, with the ‘rollover’ exposures that such a
course of action entails, in exchange for a relatively small benefit.

Distribution Hedging – The Trust’s policy in relation to distribution hedging is slightly different to that for equity
capital. This is reflected in the form of the hedges that are in place for distributions, whereby contracts have been
entered to sell substantially all the estimated Yen net cash flow of the Trust for A$ at the prevailing forward rates going
out 5 years.

Because of the expected depreciation of the A$ against the Yen, the amount of A$ which the Trust will receive for
selling the same amount of Yen increases in each year of the hedging period.The benefit to unitholders is clear: even
if the amount of net Yen revenue remains flat over the hedging period, the effect of the forward sales of Yen is that the
amount of A$ which will be realised will increase each year.The forward sales of Yen of course do not put a ‘cap’ or
limit on the amount of A$ that unitholders can receive, because to the extent that there is additional net revenue from

Managing Director’s Report continued
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the properties beyond the amount forecast and hedged that benefit will also pass through to unitholders, albeit
converted into A$ at the then spot rate.

To the extent that the actual net revenue from the properties unexpectedly falls short of the amount hedged, the Trust
will probably have to borrow an additional amount of Yen to make up the shortfall of what it has promised to pay
under the forward exchange contracts and so it will bear that additional borrowing cost. In the absence of a very
dramatic surge in Yen interest rates, that additional cost would not be expected to be significant.

Finally, as with the capital hedge, with hindsight it will of course eventually become clear whether or not the Trust
would have been better off not hedging the expected distributions from Yen into A$. If the Yen actually appreciates
against the A$ by more than that implied in the forward rates we have locked in, it will be possible to say that we
would have done better in A$ terms if we had not hedged distributions.Apart from making the obvious points about
the merits of a bird in the hand and the fact, that whilst hindsight can be a harsh judge, it is regrettably not yet
available as an investment tool, in this scenario unitholders looking at their returns in A$ will likely be very pleased that
the overall value of their capital will have appreciated in A$ terms, because of the very fact of the unexpectedly strong
Yen appreciation.

The distribution hedge can therefore be seen both in its own right as an attractive way of monetising with certainty
the difference in relative value of yield in a low inflation environment like Japan versus higher inflation currencies
(i.e.,Australia and just about everywhere else) and also hopefully as a sensible counterbalance given that the
Yen-denominated assets of the Trust are substantially unhedged.

Details of the capital and distribution hedge policies of the Trust are set out in the PDS and elsewhere in this report.

Outlook
The official Japanese land price data are now starting to consistently point to a shift in the long established trend of
declining property prices.This is certainly reflected in the market performance of both the J-REITs and property
companies listed on Japanese stock exchanges.The broader Japanese stock market is also showing strength, with trading
volume by value recently returning to levels not seen for well over a decade.

The improved outlook for the property sector in Japan offers both encouragement and challenges: with the market
emerging from a long slump there is increased competition to acquire assets. However, with institutional levels of
property ownership in Japan historically far lower than other major economies, there is much scope for growth of the
Trust’s assets, especially in a market as vast and fragmented as Japan.

In making new acquisitions as well as managing the existing portfolio, the Trust will be relying in a large part on the
Japan Manager with its 14 Japanese professionals and their contacts and experience in this quintessential relationship-
driven market.

Since 1998 the Babcock & Brown group has been successful in acquiring assets, managing them effectively and making
money for investors through its presence in Japan.With the listing of the Trust, this team’s focus is now squarely on
managing and building the Trust’s portfolio.We have every confidence of continued success.

I hope the above insights are helpful.Thank you for your support.

ERIC LUCAS
Managing Director
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Distribution above forecast
largely due to:
• costs of IPO and acquisition

of property interests lower
than forecast

• property related cash earnings
greater than forecast due to
properties being acquired
earlier than estimated and
performing slightly better
than (but broadly in line
with) PDS estimates



Performance vs Benchmark
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Review of Results and Operations continued

In order to present the operations and results of the Trust in a meaningful way, the following review of results and
operations is based on comparison between actual results for the period ended 30 June 2005 and the forecast as
presented in the PDS.

Income Statement

Actual PDS Actual PDS
$’000 $’000 ¥’000 ¥’000

Income

Property Income

Property revenue 9,505 9,331 785,233 718,158

Property expenses 1,267 2,067 105,698 159,121

Net property income 8,238 7,264 679,535 559,037

Net Income from Investment in Associates

Share of property income of associates 2,224 2,386 183,820 183,598

Share of property expenses of associates 1,000 1,024 82,633 78,783

Share of borrowing costs of associates 287 309 23,754 23,764

Share of other expenses of associates 37 – 3,083 –

Share of profits from associates 900 1,053 74,350 81,051

Fair value gain on derivatives – unrealised 4,951 – 409,194 –

Realised foreign currency gain 2,125 – 175,616 –

Income from foreign currency capital hedge 796 737 65,823 56,728

Interest compensation revenue 154 168 12,931 12,931

Interest income 145 – 12,003 –

Total Income 17,309 9,222 1,429,454 709,747

Expenses

Asset management fee expense 9,286 655 767,459 50,378

Borrowing expense 842 1,165 69,381 89,693

Withholding tax 1,287 1,007 108,232 77,475

Other expenses 1,738 290 143,671 22,317

TK Operator profit share 44 44 3,686 3,366

Total Expenses 13,197 3,161 1,092,430 243,229

Net Profit 4,112 6,061 337,024 466,518

The property results section below provides commentary on the net property income results for the period.

BABCOCK & BROWN JAPAN PROPERTY TRUST
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Whilst the net profit is lower than the forecast of $6.1 million in the PDS, this is due largely to non-property related
items which by their nature were not part of the forecast in the PDS. After adjusting for the major non-property
related items, the net profit compares favourably with the PDS forecast, as follows:

Period Ended PDS
30/06/05 Forecast

Net profit ($’000) 4,112

Adjustments for main non-property related items not in PDS forecast:

– unrealised fair value of derivatives (AIFRS requirement) (4,951)

– realised foreign exchange gain (FX trade to purchase Japanese investments) (2,125)

– Trust performance fee 8,611

– interest rate swap cancellation fee (original swap 76bps, debt fixed at 68bps) 1,273

Net profit adjusted ($’000) 6,919 6,061

Property Results
Total

Actual PDS Variance FX Other Actual PDS Variance Variance
$’000 $’000 $’000 Variance Variance ¥’000 ¥’000 ¥’000 %

Income

Property income (11 TK properties)

Property revenue 9,505 9,331 174 (615) 789 785,233 718,158 67,075 9.3%

Property expenses 1,267 2,067 800 136 664 105,698 159,121 53,424 –33.6%

Net property income 8,238 7,264 974 (479) 1,452 679,535 559,037 120,498 21.6%

Net Income from Investment in Associate (Kawasaki Dice)

Share of associates

Property income 2,224 2,386 (162) (158) (4) 183,820 183,598 222 0.1%

Property expenses 1,000 1,024 24 68 (44) 82,633 78,783 (3,850) 4.9%

Borrowing costs 287 309 22 20 2 23,754 23,764 10 0.0%

Other expenses 37 – (37) – (37) 3,083 – (3,083) 100.0%

Share of profits from 
associates 900 1,053 (153) (70) (83) 74,350 81,051 (6,701) –8.3%

The Trust’s net property income was higher than forecast due to higher than forecast property results offset by a
negative foreign exchange impact.

The PDS forecast assumed an average JPY/AUD exchange rate of 77 compared to an actual average exchange rate of
approximately 83. This reduced the Trust’s net property income results by $0.7 million.

The net property income from the Trust’s interest in the 11 TK properties was ¥120 million (A$1.4 million) higher
than forecast due to:

• gross property revenue higher due to earlier than forecast property acquisitions and slightly higher than forecast
occupancy rates; and

• lower property related expenses due to the treatment in Japan (amortisation vs. current expense) of the adjustment
for current year’s real estate tax between the seller and the TK on acquisition, to the extent of ¥49 million
($0.6 million).
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Review of Results and Operations continued

Balance Sheet
30/06/05 30/06/05

$’000 ¥’000

Current assets

Cash 23,862 2,007,723

Tenant deposits 10,105 850,250

Derivative financial instruments 1,473 123,938

Other assets 8,431 709,382

Total current assets 43,871 3,691,292

Non-current assets

Property investments 466,092 39,216,828

Investment in associates

Share of property assets of associates 94,236 7,929,000

Share of borrowings of associates 51,379 4,323,000

Share of other net assets of associates 3,996 336,196

Net investment in associates 46,853 3,942,196

Derivative financial instruments 4,275 359,697

Other 365 30,711

Total non-current assets 517,585 43,549,432

Total assets 561,456 47,240,724

Current liabilities

Payables 12,406 1,043,837

Tenant deposits 25,652 2,158,351

Distribution payable 6,302 530,248

Current tax liability 867 72,949

Total current liabilities 45,227 3,805,385

Non-current liabilities

Payables 4,048 340,597

Tenant deposits 4,754 400,000

Borrowings 245,005 20,614,640

Deferred tax liability 176 14,809

Total non-current liabilities 253,983 21,370,046

Total liabilities 299,210 25,175,431

Net assets 262,246 22,065,292

BABCOCK & BROWN JAPAN PROPERTY TRUST
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Borrowings
The level of borrowings is in line with the PDS forecast and the Trust was able to enjoy the benefit of the TK locking
in a slightly lower interest rate than forecast for the newly entered TK borrowings. Prior to the TK locking in this
lower interest rate, however, the Trust incurred an upfront interest rate swap cancellation fee of approximately
$1.3 million during the period (original fixed swap rate 76bps, final fixed swap rate at 68bps) in connection with an
interest rate hedge entered into around the time of PDS issuance.

Total/
TK KDTMK Weighted

Borrowings Borrowings Average
¥ billions ¥ billions ¥ billions

Fixed debt 18.6 14.4 33.0

Floating debt 2.1 – 2.1

Trust interest (%) 100% 30%

Trust interest 20.7 4.3 25.0

Maturity date 29/03/2010 31/08/2006 12/08/2009

Maturity (years) 4.8 1.2 4.1

Fixed interest rate (%) 1.30% 1.0%(1) 1.24%

Floating interest rate (p.a.) 0.69% n/a 0.69%

Gearing ratio (liabilities/assets) 53.3%

Gearing ratio (interest bearing debt/investment properties) 52.9%

Gearing ratio (interest bearing debt/total assets) 48.4%

Debt service coverage ratio (net profit before interest and tax/borrowing costs) 7.4

NOTE:
(1) The Trust’s interest in KDTMK has been acquired with out-of-the money borrowings in place with a maturity of 31/8/2006.The fixed interest rate is after taking

into account of interest compensation arrangements in place since acquisition which reduce the Trust’s effective borrowing costs to market levels.

ANNUAL REPORT 2005

13



Hedging
Distribution Hedging

The Trust has a policy of distribution hedging such that on an ongoing basis 100% of estimated distributions for the
following three years and 90% of estimated distributions for years four and five will be hedged from Yen into A$.
The Trust’s current distribution hedge settlement dates and exchange rates are shown below. The Trust has agreed to
sell Yen forward for A$ at these rates on these dates.

Settlement Date Exchange Rate

15-Aug-05 80.44

15-Feb-06 78.73

15-Aug-06 76.61

15-Feb-07 74.48

15-Aug-07 72.70

15-Feb-08 70.82

15-Aug-08 69.17

16-Feb-09 67.46

17-Aug-09 65.79

15-Feb-10 64.23

Capital Hedging

The Trust has a capital hedging policy that between 10-30% of the Trust’s equity capital will be hedged against
currency fluctuations on an ongoing basis.The Trust thus has in place cross currency A$/Yen swaps for approximately
20% of the initial equity capital issued, as shown below. During the period of these swaps the Trust receives a net
payment equal to the difference between the respective A$ and Yen interest rates applicable to each hedged amount.

A$ JPY
Trust Trust Exchange Interest Interest

Settlement date Receives A$ Pays JPY Rate Rate Rate

Aug-09 30,000,000 2,487,240,000 82.91 6.10% 0.625%

Aug-11 30,000,000 2,487,240,000 82.91 6.13% 0.980%

BABCOCK & BROWN JAPAN PROPERTY TRUST
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Overview of the Investment and Management Structure
The following diagram sets out the structure of the Trust’s interest in the Japanese Investments and the management
arrangements for the Trust and the Japanese Investments. Eleven of the 12 properties in which the Trust currently has
an interest are held through the Tokumei Kumiai (‘TK’). One property, Kawasaki Dice, is held through Kawasaki Dice
Tokutei Mokuteki Kaisha (‘KDTMK’), in which the Trust has a 30% interest.
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Investment Structure
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Ownership Structure Summary
The Trust’s interest in the properties in Japan is achieved via two investment structures (‘Japanese Investments’),
as follows:

(a) The TK (‘tokumei kumiai’) Structure

Under Japanese commercial law a TK is not a legal entity but a contractual relationship or a series of contractual
relationships between one or more investors and a TK operator.

In a TK arrangement, the investors provide capital to a business which is defined by the contractual agreement and is
to be conducted by a TK operator, which carries on such business entirely in its own name and under its sole control
in accordance with the terms of a TK agreement.The investors have no right to make any business decisions with
respect to the business of a TK operator. Investors in a TK do not own any equity capital in a TK operator and have
no voting rights in relation to a TK operator or the business of a TK, rather there is only a contractual relationship
between a TK operator and the investors.The investors are entitled to a proportional share (based on their equity
contribution to a TK) of the profits and losses of the business of a TK operator. Depending on the express terms of a
TK agreement, liability of the investors can be limited to the amount of their initial investment or the investors can be
subject to additional capital calls.

The net effect of these contractual arrangements under Japanese tax law is that the investors are taxed in Japan on their
share of TK income (by a TK operator withholding Japanese tax from TK distributions to investors) even though the
business is conducted and relevant assets are held in the name of the TK operator.

A TK operator reports the amount of profits to which the investors are entitled as a deduction in computing its taxable
income.

The Trust’s TK Investment:The JPT TK
All the Trust’s interests in properties, with the exception of its interest in Kawasaki Dice, are held through a TK
structure.The Responsible Entity has a TK Agreement with JPT Co., Ltd., (‘TK Operator’) pursuant to which, in
exchange for the Trust’s contribution of all of the equity required for the JPT TK Business, the Trust is entitled to
100% of the investor capital account of the TK and 99% of the profits and losses of the JPT TK Business.The TK
Operator is entitled to the remaining 1% of the profits and losses of the JPT TK Business.The JPT TK’s defined
business is to obtain profits from purchasing, holding and selling the properties held by the TK Operator in accordance
with the provisions of the TK Agreement (‘JPT TK Business’).

The TK Operator has a TK Asset Management Agreement with Babcock & Brown Co., Ltd. (‘the Japan Manager’).
The asset management services provided by the Japan Manager to the TK Operator are to assist the TK Operator to
conduct the JPT TK Business.

The Trust does not own any of the equity capital of the TK Operator and does not have any voting rights in relation
to the TK Operator or the JPT TK Business, rather the Trust has a contractual claim against the TK Operator.

The TK Operator is a Japanese limited liability company established specially for the purpose of operating the JPT TK
Business. In order for the TK Operator to be bankruptcy remote, its voting stock is held by a Cayman Islands company
established specially for that purpose as nominee for Babcock & Brown Co., Ltd. and, in turn, the voting stock of the
Cayman Islands company is held by a Cayman Islands charitable trust.

It is possible the Trust may undertake additional investments in one or more other TK arrangements. It is also possible
that the initial JPT TK will serve as the vehicle for future property investments by the Trust.

Investment Structure continued
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Trust Bank(s) and Trust Beneficiary Interests
The TK Operator holds the beneficial interest in properties under a trust beneficiary certificate issued by a trust bank
licensed in Japan which holds legal title to the properties. It is common practice in Japan for a TK operator to hold its
investment in property through Trust Beneficiary Interests as otherwise a TK operator that acquires real property or
engages in a real property business is required to hold licences and will be subject to additional regulation that does not
apply if the TK operator acquires its interest in the property through a Trust Beneficiary Interest. In addition, certain
transaction levies are substantially reduced or eliminated in the case of the acquisition of a Trust Beneficiary Interest
rather than the acquisition of real property.

The TK Operator as the holder of a Trust Beneficiary Interest and therefore the beneficiary of the trust, effectively has
the same economic rights and obligations as if it were the legal owner of the property the subject of the trust.

(b) The TMK (‘tokutei mokuteki kaisha’) Structure

A TMK is a special purpose company established under the Japanese Asset Liquidation Law.A TMK must specify, in its
registered asset liquidation plan, the assets in which it intends to invest and the specified securities and debt it proposes
to issue.

While a TMK is subject to taxation in the same manner as other Japanese companies, it may potentially deduct from
its taxable income distributions made to its investors.There are a variety of administrative requirements that must
be complied with by the TMK, including that it has filed its asset liquidation plan and business commencement
notification under the Japanese Asset Liquidation Law, for it to be able to deduct its distributions. In addition, the TMK
must have declared distributions in an amount that exceeds 90% of its distributable income and it must hold no assets
other than those permitted in its asset liquidation plan.

The Trust’s TMK Investment
The Trust’s TMK investment is a 30% indirect economic interest in KDTMK, which was established in 2003 and
the Trust’s interest acquired in March 2005. KDTMK is the owner of 87.07% of the Kawasaki Dice building. The
remainder of the Kawasaki Dice building is owned by a trust bank licensed in Japan which holds 10.47% of the
Kawasaki Dice building, and which has issued a Trust Beneficiary Interest over its portion of the building, and by seven
other parties who between them hold 2.46% of the Kawasaki Dice building. The Trust Beneficiary Interest issued by
the trust bank is held by eight co-owners including KDTMK. KDTMK’s interest under the Trust Beneficiary Interest
is 2.55% of the Kawasaki Dice building.Therefore, KDTMK’s direct and indirect interest in the Kawasaki Dice
building is 89.62%. KDTMK has leased that portion of the building which is held subject to the Trust Beneficiary
Interest from the beneficiaries of the Trust Beneficiary Interest and may sub-lease that portion of the building.
KDTMK owns 87% of the land on which the Kawasaki Dice building is located, with the remaining 13% held by
the seven other owners of the Kawasaki Dice building, excluding the trust bank, referred to above.

The Trust’s indirect interest in KDTMK is held through KD Holdings, which holds 30% of the first series preferred
shares in KDTMK.Tokyo Tatemono Co., Ltd., a real estate company listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange, is the owner
of the remaining 70% of the first series preferred shares in KDTMK. KD Holdings holds the first series preferred shares
in KDTMK as nominee for the Trust.

It is possible the Trust may invest in additional TMKs in the future. TMKs once established are difficult to use for
additional acquisitions, unless their asset liquidation plan provides for further acquisitions of properties and the details
of those properties, therefore TMKs are generally established on a project-by-project basis.
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Portfolio Overview

Tenant Industry Diversification

(Top 20 Tenants by Income)

Advertising 7.3%

Agency 3.4%

Education 4.1%

Entertainment 15.0%

Finance 9.6%

IT 9.1%

Other 4.4%

Pharmaceutical 2.4%

Retail 44.8%

Retail

• 4 properties
• 17,982 tsubo/59,444 square metres net

rentable area (‘NRA’)*
• 68.2% of total portfolio by area*
• 42.6% of total portfolio by income
• 35 leases
• 18 Fixed Term Leases
• 6 non-cancellable leases

18
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Office

• 8 properties
• 8,368 tsubo/27,662 square metres net rentable area (‘NRA’)*
• 31.8% of total portfolio by area*
• 57.4% of total portfolio by income
• 143 leases
• All Standard Leases

* Reflects the Trust’s percentage interests in the Kawasaki Dice and Shinjuku Sanei properties.
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Investment Property Value by Class

(by Carrying Value)

Retail 47.7%

Office 52.3%
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Portfolio Overview continued

Greater Tokyo
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Central Tokyo
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Portfolio Overview continued

Konan Home Centre

Sun

Kawasaki Dice

Higashi Totsuka

Harajuku Bell Pier

Forest Kita Aoyama

BABCOCK & BROWN JAPAN PROPERTY TRUST

22



ANNUAL REPORT 2005

Motomachi

Shiba Daimon

Shinjuku Sanei

Yotsuya KD

Ginza Dowa

Sun No. 5
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30/06/05  

Carrying

Value

Property Name Location Completed ¥ billion

Retail Properties

Konan Home Centre Chiba prefecture – Ichikawa Mar 2005 10.4

Kawasaki Dice Kanagawa prefecture – Kawasaki Aug 2003 7.9

Harajuku Bell Pier Central Tokyo – Shibuya ward, Jingumae Jan 2004 2.1

Motomachi Kanagawa prefecture – Yokohama Jun 1992 2.1

Retail sub-total/average May 2003 22.5

Office Properties

Shinjuku Sanei Central Tokyo – Shinjuku ward, Nishi Shinjuku Dec 1979 8.3

Ginza Dowa Central Tokyo – Chuo ward, Ginza Sep 1974 7.5

Sun Central Tokyo – Chuo ward, Ginza Nov 1974 3.3

Higashi Totsuka Kanagawa prefecture – Yokohama Feb 1993 2.2

Forest Kita Aoyama Central Tokyo – Minato ward, Kita Aoyama Apr 1991 1.5

Shiba Daimon Central Tokyo – Minato ward, Shiba Daimon Mar 1994 0.8

Yotsuya KD Central Tokyo – Shinjuku ward, Yotsuya Feb 1990 0.7

Sun No. 5 Central Tokyo – Chuo ward, Nihonbashi Muromachi May 1983 0.4

Office sub-total/average May 1980 24.7

Total/average July 1991 47.2

NOTE:
(1) Occupancy information by area and by income are snapshots at a point in time.

Portfolio Overview continued
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% of Trust’s Share Trust’s Share Occupancy (by area)(1) Occupancy (by income)(1)

Portfolio NRA NRA As at As at As at As at

by Value (tsubo) (sqm) PDS 30/06/05 PDS 30/06/05

22.0% 14,768 48,819 100.0% 100.0% 91.5% 100.0%

16.7% 2,503 8,274 100.0% 99.4% 100.0% 99.1%

4.4% 232 766 93.2% 87.1% 94.0% 81.8%

4.4% 480 1,585 93.8% 93.8% 97.1% 97.1%

47.7% 17,983 59,444 99.7% 99.6% 95.7% 97.8%

17.6% 2,463 8,141 97.9% 97.0% 98.4% 97.2%

15.9% 1,919 6,344 84.7% 87.1% 87.0% 89.0%

7.0% 1,111 3,673 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

4.7% 1,716 5,671 84.2% 87.3% 85.4% 88.3%

3.2% 260 862 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

1.7% 293 966 63.9% 63.9% 66.1% 66.1%

1.5% 363 1,200 86.8% 92.3% 85.6% 96.0%

0.8% 244 805 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

52.3% 8,369 27,662 90.8% 92.0% 92.4% 93.2%

100% 26,352 87,106 96.9% 97.2% 93.7% 95.1%



Top 20 Tenant Profile 

Tenant Name Property Industry

1. Toyota Tsusho Corporation/Konan Shoji(2) Konan Home Centre Trading/Retail

2. Matahari Kawasaki Dice Entertainment

3. NTT Advance Technology Higashi Totsuka System Solution

4. Kyodo PR Ginza Dowa Advertising

5. Sakuraya Kawasaki Dice Retail

6. Daiwa Jitsugyo Ginza Dowa Entertainment

7. Louis Vuitton Motomachi Retail

8. Central Finance(5) Shinjuku Sanei Finance

9. Tokyo Academy Forest Kita Aoyama Education

10. Adecco Shinjuku Sanei Agency

11. Orient Corporation Sun Finance

12. Shokokumiai Chuo Kinko Shinjuku Sanei Finance

13. Chugai Pharmaceutical Shinjuku Sanei Pharmaceutical

14. Toho Cinemas Kawasaki Dice Entertainment

15. Aoi Shoten Kawasaki Dice Retail

16. Misawa Homes Tokyo Higashi Totsuka Housing

17. Tokyu Hands Kawasaki Dice Retail

18. B Zen Sun Photo Studio

19. Otori Sun Textile

20. Bell Data Shinjuku Sanei System Support

Total top 20

NOTES:
(1) The remaining term has not been included for most standard leases as the tenants usually have the right to cancel their lease with six

months’ notice.
(2) The property is 100% leased to Konan Shoji on a 20 year lease. For the first 12 years the master lessee is Toyota Tsusho Corporation under

a fixed lease pursuant to which Toyota Tsusho sub-leases to Konan Shoji. From the end of the 12 year master lease term the lease is directly
with Konan Shoji. In addition to the rent payable, the tenant is also responsible for property taxes, insurance, repairs and capital
expenditure.

(3) A 20 year lease contract. For the initial 10 years the lease is uncancellable. From that point on the cancellation can be made with a
12 month prior notice and forfeiture of the tenant deposit.

(4) A 10 year lease which is uncancellable.
(5) Central Finance cancelled approximately 60% of its lease by area during the period, however, the rent payment obligation for the cancelled

space continued through to 31 July 2005.
(6) A 10 year lease contract. Cancellation can be made with six months’ prior notice and payment of a penalty equivalent to six months’ rent.

Portfolio Overview continued
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% of Trust’s

Total Gross Passing Lease Remaining

Lease Type Rent Plus CAM Expiry Date Term (years)(1)

Fixed 18.1% March 2025(2) 19.8(2)

Standard(3) 6.5% August 2023 18.2

Standard 5.2% January 2006 –

Standard 4.9% September 2005 –

Standard(4) 4.6% August 2013 8.2

Standard 3.4% December 2005 –

Fixed 3.1% September 2011 6.3

Standard 2.9% July 2005 –

Standard 2.7% April 2007 –

Standard 2.3% October 2005 –

Standard 1.8% October 2005 –

Standard 1.7% August 2005 –

Standard 1.6% December 2005 –

Fixed 1.5% August 2023 18.2

Fixed 1.4% August 2013 8.2

Standard 1.1% January 2007 –

Standard(6) 1.1% August 2013 8.2

Standard 0.9% September 2006 –

Standard 0.9% August 2005 –

Standard 0.9% September 2005 –

66.7%

ANNUAL REPORT 2005
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Address 2526-6, Baraki, Ichikawa, Chiba
Located close to expressway, approximately 720 metres (a nine minute walk) from Futamata Shinmachi
station on the JR Keiyo line and 20 minutes by car from the centre of Tokyo

Sub-market Ichikawa City
Property type Single tenant retail home centre and specialty stores

Konan Home Centre

28
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In Review

Occupancy

Occupancy by area remained stable between the PDS and

30 June at 100%.

Lease Expirations

n/a

New Leases

n/a

Cancelled Leases

n/a

Net Rentable Area Occupied

n/a

Capital Expenditure

n/a

Key Property Statistics

Summary

Ownership interest 100%

Purchase date 30 March 2005

Carrying value (billion) ¥10.4

Completed March 2005

Property Statistics

Land area (square metres) 83,401

Net rentable area 48,819 sqm (14,768 tsubo)

Occupancy by area 100%

Occupancy by income 100%

Weighted average lease term to expiry 19.8 years

Property Overview
The Konan Home Centre is a large scale retail complex comprising a home centre with additional specialty shops
(consumer electronics, supermarket, variety goods and gas station), completed in March 2005. It is located in Ichikawa
City, about 20 minutes from the centre of Tokyo by car and a nine minute walk from Futamata Shinmachi station on the
JR Keiyo line. Ichikawa City is located in Chiba prefecture and has a population of about 460,000.

The property is 100% sub-leased to Konan Shoji on a 20 year lease from the date of completion. Konan’s home centre
occupies approximately 75% of the total retail area and the specialty stores the remainder. For the first 12 years the master
lessee is Toyota Tsusho, rated A- by S&P, under a fixed lease pursuant to which Toyota Tsusho sub-leases to Konan Shoji.
From the end of the 12 year master lease term, there will be a direct lease to Konan.

Konan was a pioneer in the do-it-yourself (‘DIY’) home centre industry in Japan, entering the market in 1978. Konan is
listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange and is rated BBB by the Japan Credit Rating Agency, Ltd.

Toyota Tsusho was established in 1936 as a finance company for Toyota Automobile Corporation. In 1977,Toyota Tsusho
listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange. Toyota continues to own approximately 23% of Toyota Tsusho’s stock.

Major Tenant Summary
% of Lease Remaining

Lease Total Expiry Term

Tenant Name Industry Type Rent Date (years)

Toyota Tsusho 

Corporation/Konan Shoji Trading/Retail Fixed 100% Mar 2025 19.8

Total/Average 100% Mar 2025 19.8
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Address 8, Ekimaehoncho, Kawasaki-ku, Kawasaki, Kanagawa
Approximately 250 metres (a three minute walk) from the Kawasaki JR station

Sub-market Kawasaki City
Property type Multi-tenant retail/cinema/restaurant/entertainment building

Kawasaki Dice
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In Review

Occupancy

Occupancy by area decreased from 100% at the time of the PDS

to 99.4% at 30 June.

Lease Expirations

No leases expired during the period.

New Leases

No new leases were established into during the period.

Cancelled Leases

One lease was cancelled during the period for 14 tsubo (47 sqm)

which is 0.6% of the property by area.

Net Rentable Area Occupied

Decreased by 0.6% (14 tsubo/47 sqm) during the period.

Capital Expenditure

n/a

Key Property Statistics

Summary

Ownership interest 30%

Purchase date 30 March 2005

Carrying value (billion) ¥7.9

Completed August 2003

Property Statistics

Land area (square metres) 4,475

Net rentable area (100%) 27,581 sqm (8,343 tsubo)

Net rentable area (Trust’s share) 8,274 sqm (2,503 tsubo)

Occupancy by area 99.4%

Occupancy by income 99.1%

Weighted average lease term to expiry 12.5 years

Property Overview
Kawasaki Dice is a large-scale (11 floors above ground plus two basement levels) multi-tenant retail, cinema, restaurant
and entertainment complex. Most (approximately 80%) of the cash flow is secured by Fixed Term Leases or by long-term
Standard Leases which in each case are non-cancellable. Major anchor tenants include Tokyu Hands,Toho Cinemas and
Sakuraya, all national brands in Japan.

The property was completed in late 2003 in a major city centre redevelopment and is located just beside the Kawasaki
station on the Keihin Kyuko line and within three minutes’ walk of the Kawasaki JR station. Kawasaki is about
18 kilometres southwest of Tokyo and 20 minutes by train from Tokyo station with a population of approximately
1.3 million. Kawasaki is a major suburban centre in the greater Tokyo area and a retail hub.

The building is connected to a large underground shopping arcade, called Azalea, and from there directly to the main
Kawasaki JR station.

Major Tenant Summary
% of Lease Remaining

Lease Total Expiry Term

Tenant Name Industry Type Rent Date (years)

Matahari Entertainment Standard Aug 2023 18.2

Sukaraya Retail Standard Aug 2013 8.2

TOHO Cinemas Entertainment Fixed Aug 2023 18.2

Aoi Shoten Retail Fixed Aug 2013 8.2

Tokyu Hands Retail Standard Aug 2013 8.2

Top five tenants 88.1%

Other Other tenants – 14 11.9%

Total/Average 100% Dec 2017 12.5
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Address 6-6-2, Jingumae, Shibuya-ku,Tokyo
Located approximately 200 metres (a three minute walk) from Meiji-Jingumae station on the Tokyo
Metro Chiyoda line

Sub-market Shibuya ward
Property type Multi-tenant retail building

Harajuku Bell Pier
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Property Overview
Harajuku Bell Pier is a multi-tenant retail building completed in 2004 in the Harajuku/Omotesando retail area of central
Tokyo, the heart of youth and design culture in Tokyo. Omotesando has a large and expanding variety of high-end retail
stores, particularly fashion brands such as Chanel,Yves St. Laurent and Louis Vuitton.

The side streets running off Omotesando, such as the street in front of this property, are known as a draw for teenage and
youth culture, with an ever-increasing number of brand shops targeted at younger consumers, as well as the ‘edgier’ outlets
for which Harajuku originally became famous.

The property is located on one of these side streets and was conceived and designed to cater to this particular market.
The building comprises three storeys plus a basement with nine tenants including restaurants and specialty retailers.

Major Tenant Summary
% of Lease

Lease Total Expiry

Tenant Name Industry Type Rent Date

Good Honest Grub Food and Beverage Standard 19.4% Apr 2007

Ryu Suzuki Hair Salon Standard 18.1% Sep 2006

K.K.M & T Consul Food and Beverage Standard 15.9% Feb 2007

ARROWS, INC. Retail Standard 14.2% Feb 2007

K.K. Souther Retail Standard 8.3% Jun 2008

Other Other tenants – 4 24.1%

Total/Average 100% Apr 2007

Key Property Statistics

Summary

Ownership interest 100%

Purchase date 29 March 2005

Carrying value (billion) ¥2.1

Completed January 2004

Property Statistics

Land area (square metres) 372

Net rentable area 766 sqm (232 tsubo)

Occupancy by area 87.1%

Occupancy by income 81.8%

Weighted average lease term to expiry 1.8 years

In Review

Occupancy

Occupancy by area decreased from 93.2% at the time of the PDS

to 87.1% at 30 June.

Lease Expirations

No leases expired during the period.

New Leases

One new lease was entered into during the period for

16 tsubo (52 sqm) which is 6.8% of the property by area.

Cancelled Leases

One lease was cancelled during the period for 30 tsubo (99 sqm)

which is 12.9% of the property by area.

Net Rentable Area Occupied

Decreased by 6.1% (14 tsubo/47 sqm) during the period.

Capital Expenditure

n/a
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Address 4-168, Motomachi, Naka-ku,Yokohama, Kanagawa
Located approximately 350 metres (a five minute walk) from Ishikawacho station on the JR Negishi line

Sub-market Yokohama City
Property type Multi-tenant retail building with some office tenants

Motomachi
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Property Overview
The Motomachi property is a prime retail building anchored by Louis Vuitton located at the centre of Yokohama’s leading
upscale specialty retail street, Motomachi.Yokohama is the second largest city in Japan, approximately 30 kilometres south
of Tokyo, within the greater Tokyo metropolitan area.

The property is a six storey building with one basement floor and was completed in 1992. Louis Vuitton occupies the street
level and the two floors immediately above on a 10 year Fixed Term Lease, expiring in September 2011. Retail, medical,
and entertainment tenants occupy the remaining floors on Standard Leases.

The property is situated a five minute walk from Ishikawacho station, which is served by the JR Negishi line.A new
subway station – Motomachi Chukagai (China Town) – opened in 2004 and directly connects the area to Tokyo through
the Tokyu Toyoko line.

Major Tenant Summary
% of Lease Remaining

Lease Total Expiry Term

Tenant Name Industry Type Rent Date (years)

Louis Vuitton Retail Fixed 71.6% Sep 2011 6.3

Joyful Maruyama Retail Standard 9.2% Jul 2007 –

DC Entertainment Standard 9.1% Mar 2006 –

Mr Inoue Medical Clinic Standard 4.1% Jan 2006 –

Mr Ohwan Medical Clinic Standard 3.4% May 2008 –

Other Other tenants – 1 2.6%

Total/Average 100% May 2010

Key Property Statistics

Summary

Ownership interest 100%

Purchase date 31 March 2005

Carrying value (billion) ¥2.1

Completed June 1992

Property Statistics

Land area (square metres) 387

Net rentable area 1,585 sqm (480 tsubo)

Occupancy by area 93.8%

Occupancy by income 97.1%

Weighted average lease term to expiry 4.9 years

In Review

Occupancy

Occupancy by area remained stable between the PDS and

30 June at 93.8%.

Lease Expirations

One lease (27 tsubo/89 sqm/5.6% of property by area) expired

during the period and was renewed with rental levels remaining

constant.

New Leases

No new leases were established during the period.

Cancelled Leases

No leases were cancelled during the period.

Net Rentable Area Occupied

No change during the period.

Capital Expenditure

n/a
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Address 1-22-2, Nishi Shinjuku, Shinjuku,Tokyo
Approximately 400 metres (a five minute walk) from JR Shinjuku station and approximately
200 metres (a three minute walk) from Shinjuku station on the Tokyo Metro Shinjuku/Oedo lines
and the Keio-shinsen line

Sub-market Shinjuku ward
Property type Multi-tenant office building with some retail tenants

Shinjuku Sanei
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Property Overview
The property is a large (15 storeys with two basements and two penthouses), multi-tenant (approximately 40) office
building located in Nishi Shinjuku, the original high-rise office precinct of Tokyo and still one of its major office areas.
It is a five minute walk from JR Shinjuku station, which is the busiest commuter train station in Japan.

The Trust’s interest in the property is in a 39% joint ownership portion. The remaining undivided interest in the property is
owned 20% by a subsidiary of Showa Jisho and 41% by Yamatane Real Estate (both privately owned real estate companies).
Yamatane Real Estate has owned an interest in the property since it was built. The building occupants are predominantly in
the human resources, pharmaceutical, finance and IT industries.

The Nishi Shinjuku area was developed from the late 1960s as a major office, hotel, retail and entertainment hub in central
Tokyo and remains one of the leading skyscraper office/retail zones in Japan, containing the Tokyo Metropolitan
Government Office, Opera City and numerous other office towers. Major hotels such as the Century Hyatt Hotel and
Hilton Hotel, as well as major department stores and other large-scale retail stores, are located in the area.

Major Tenant Summary
% of Lease

Lease Total Expiry

Tenant Name Industry Type Rent Date

Central Finance Finance Standard 14.5% Jul 2005

Adecco Agency Standard 11.5% Oct 2005

Shokokumiai Chuo Kinko Finance Standard 8.5% Aug 2005

Chugai Pharmaceutical Pharmaceutical Standard 8.0% Dec 2005

Bell Data System Support Standard 4.3% Sep 2005

Other Other tenants – 33 53.2%

Total/Average 100% Apr 2006

Key Property Statistics

Summary

Ownership interest 39%

Purchase date 29 March 2005

Carrying value (billion) ¥8.3

Completed December 1979

Property Statistics

Land area (square metres) 3,063

Net rentable area (100%) 20,874 sqm (6,314 tsubo)

Net rentable area (Trust’s share) 8,141 sqm (2,463 tsubo)

Occupancy by area 97.0%

Occupancy by income 97.2%

In Review

Occupancy

Occupancy by area decreased from 97.9% at the time of the PDS

to 97.0% at 30 June.

Lease Expirations

17 leases (335 tsubo/1,107sqm/13.6% of property by area)

expired during the period and all of these were renewed with

rental levels remaining constant.

New Leases

Two new leases were entered into during the period for 32 tsubo

(106 sqm) which is 1.3% of the property by area.

Cancelled Leases

One lease was cancelled during the period for 53 tsubo

(175 sqm) which is 2.2% of the property by area.

Net Rentable Area Occupied

Decreased by 0.9% (21 tsubo/69 sqm) during the period.

Capital Expenditure

n/a
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Address 7-2-22, Ginza, Chuo-ku,Tokyo
Approximately 240 metres (a three minute walk) from Ginza station on the Tokyo Metro Marunouchi,
Ginza and Hibiya lines

Sub-market Chuo ward
Property type Multi-tenant office building with some retail tenants

Ginza Dowa
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Property Overview
The Ginza Dowa property is a nine storey plus basement level office building located in Ginza. It has a corner location
facing Ginza ‘Corridor Street’, which is one of the better known Ginza streets although not a major thoroughfare.
The building is within 300 metres of the famed Imperial Hotel and three minutes from Ginza station of the
Marunouchi/Hibiya/Ginza subway lines.

The property, built in 1974, has a current vacancy rate higher both than the sub-market average and the long-term vacancy
allowance forecast by the independent valuer. In order to normalise the income return from this property a master lease
was provided from the time of its acquisition for a period of two years over 700 square metres of the office accommodation
at a rate of ¥21,000 per tsubo, being the independent valuer’s assessed market rental.

Major Tenant Summary
% of Lease

Lease Total Expiry

Tenant Name Industry Type Rent Date

Kyodo PR Advertising Standard 31.7% Sep 2005

Daiwa Jitsugyo Entertainment Standard 22.5% Dec 2005

Sun M Project Food and Beverage Standard 4.4% Jan 2006

Dowa Kosan Service Standard 4.2% Sep 2005

M Fly Villa Retail Standard 4.0% Oct 2006

Master lease 11.5% Mar 2007

Other Other tenants – 12 21.7%

Total/Average 100% Mar 2006

Key Property Statistics

Summary

Ownership interest 100%

Purchase date 29 March 2005

Carrying value (billion) ¥7.5

Completed September 1974

Property Statistics

Land area (square metres) 1,162

Net rentable area 6,344 sqm (1,919 tsubo)

Occupancy by area 87.1%

Occupancy by income 89.0%

In Review

Occupancy

Occupancy by area increased from 84.7% at the time of the PDS

to 87.1% at 30 June.

Lease Expirations

Eight leases (163 tsubo/539 sqm/8.5% of property by area)

expired during the period and all of these were renewed with

rental levels remaining constant.

New Leases

One new lease was established during the period for 184 tsubo

(609 sqm) which is 9.6% of the property by area.

Cancelled Leases

Two leases were cancelled during the period for 138 tsubo

(456 sqm) which is 7.2% of property by area.

Net Rentable Area Occupied

Increased by 2.4% (46 tsubo/153 sqm) during the period.

Capital Expenditure

Work was undertaken during the period on the entrance to the

property (approximately ¥26.0 million).
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Address 5-13-12, Ginza, Chuo-ku Tokyo
Approximately 100 metres (a one minute walk) from Higashi-Ginza station on the Tokyo Metro
Hibiya line

Sub-market Chuo ward
Property type Multi-tenant office building with some retail tenants

Sun
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Property Overview
The Sun property is a 10 storey office (ground floor retail) building, with two basement floors and was completed in
November 1974. It is located on a highly visible corner site on Showa dori, one of the three arterial roads in the Ginza
area of Tokyo and close to the massive new Shiodome office and mixed-use development. It is located 100 metres from
the Higashi-Ginza station on the Tokyo Metro Hibiya line.

Although Ginza is primarily a retail and entertainment district and not a traditional office market, there is demand for
office space from tenants both for its convenient location (easily accessible by road, subway or rail) and also for the cachet
of a Ginza address. The proximity of the new Shiodome development – completed in stages from December 2002 – has
had a positive effect on the area, as the new office towers and their large tenants have brought additional profile and
demand for related services.

Major Tenant Summary
% of Lease

Lease Total Expiry

Tenant Name Industry Type Rent Date

Orient Corporation Finance Standard 22.3% Oct 2005

B Zen Photo Studio Standard 11.4% Sep 2006

Otori Textile Standard 10.9% Aug 2005

D Flawless Service Standard 9.9% Aug 2005

Tokyo Kanefuku Manufacturer Standard 9.9% Sep 2005

Other Other tenants – 6 35.6%

Total/Average 100% Nov 2006

Key Property Statistics

Summary

Ownership interest 100%

Purchase date 31 March 2005

Carrying value (billion) ¥3.3

Completed November 1974

Property Statistics

Land area (square metres) 469

Net rentable area 3,673 sqm (1,111 tsubo)

Occupancy by area 100%

Occupancy by income 100%

In Review

Occupancy

Occupancy by area remained stable between PDS and 30 June

at 100%.

Lease Expirations

One lease (15 tsubo/50 sqm/1.4% of property by area) expired

during the period and was renewed with rental levels remaining

constant.

New Leases

No new leases were established during the period.

Cancelled Leases

No leases were cancelled during the period.

Net Rentable Area Occupied

No change during the period.

Capital Expenditure

n/a
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Address 90-6, Kawakamicho,Totsuka-ku,Yokohama, Kanagawa
Approximately 80 metres (a one minute walk) from the Higashi Totsuka station

Sub-market Yokohama City
Property type Multi-tenant office building

Higashi Totsuka
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Property Overview
The Higashi Totsuka property is an 11 storey office building with 38 parking lots at basement level, completed in
February 1993. The property is alongside the Higashi Totsuka JR station, which is the second station, eight kilometres south
from Yokohama station on the Yokosuka line and 37 kilometres from central Tokyo in Kanagawa prefecture. Kanagawa
prefecture, of which Yokohama is the capital, is the second most populous prefecture in Japan after Tokyo, with a population
of approximately 8.8 million.

Higashi Totsuka is an office and residential district which is a satellite to the central Yokohama area. This general area is a
‘dormitory suburb’ to central Tokyo. There are number of high-rise residential towers, a major suburban regional mall and
a number of mid-scale office buildings.

NTT Advanced Technology, a member of the NTT group engaged in research and development, occupies 72.6% of the
building by income and has been a tenant in the property since 1994.

Major Tenant Summary
% of Lease

Lease Total Expiry

Tenant Name Industry Type Rent Date

NTT Advanced Technology System Solution Standard 72.6% Jan 2006

Misawa Homes Tokyo Housing Standard 16.0% Jan 2007

Hagglands Manufacturer Standard 4.1% Aug 2005

KDDI Telecommunication Standard 3.8% Jul 2005

Daio Paper Manufacturer Standard 3.5% Aug 2005

Total/Average 100% Mar 2006

Key Property Statistics

Summary

Ownership interest 100%

Purchase date 31 March 2005

Carrying value (billion) ¥2.2

Completed February 1993

Property Statistics

Land area (square metres) 1,582

Net rentable area 5,671 sqm (1,716 tsubo)

Occupancy by area 87.3%

Occupancy by income 88.3%

In Review

Occupancy

Occupancy by area increased from 84.2% at the time of the PDS

to 87.3% at 30 June.

Lease Expirations

No leases expired during the period.

New Leases

One new lease was established during the period for 163 tsubo

(539 sqm) which is 9.5% of the property by area.

Cancelled Leases

One lease was cancelled during the period for 109 tsubo

(360 sqm) which is 6.4% of the property by area.

Net Rentable Area Occupied

Increased by 3.1% (54 tsubo/179 sqm) during the period.

Capital Expenditure

n/a



BABCOCK & BROWN JAPAN PROPERTY TRUST

Address 3-10-3, Kita Aoyama, Minato-ku,Tokyo
Approximately 50 metres (a one minute walk) from Omotesando station served by Tokyo Metro Ginza,
Chiyoda and Hanzomon lines

Sub-market Minato ward
Property type Office building

Forest Kita Aoyama
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Property Overview
The Forest Kita Aoyama property is located in the heart of the fashion and design locale of Kita Aoyama in the Minato
ward of Central Tokyo. It is a one minute walk from Omotesando station, a subway station serviced by three major lines
and close to the tree-lined avenue known as Omotesando, from which the station takes its name. The building is a modern
three storey (plus basement and attic) office building plus five car parking spaces, built in 1991.

The property has been tenanted since completion approximately 13 years ago by the Tokyo headquarters of a Japanese
media/education company, however, it was originally designed for ground floor retail and upper floors office usage.
If the current tenant were to vacate the property, the Responsible Entity anticipates the possibility of achieving an increase
in rental income from switching the ground floor from office to retail usage.

Major Tenant Summary
% of Lease

Lease Total Expiry

Tenant Name Industry Type Rent Date

Tokyo Academy Education Standard 99.7% Apr 2007

Pacific Kikaku Research Standard 0.3% Feb 2007

Total/Average 100% Apr 2007

Key Property Statistics

Summary

Ownership interest 100%

Purchase date 31 March 2005

Carrying value (billion) ¥1.5

Completed April 1991

Property Statistics

Land area (square metres) 706

Net rentable area 862 sqm (260 tsubo)

Occupancy by area 100%

Occupancy by income 100%

In Review

Occupancy

Occupancy by area remained stable between PDS and 30 June

at 100%.

Lease Expirations

Two leases (260 tsubo/862 sqm/100% of property by area)

expired during the period and were renewed with rental levels

remaining constant.

New Leases

No new leases were established during the period.

Cancelled Leases

No leases were cancelled during the period.

Net Rentable Area Occupied

No change during the period.

Capital Expenditure

n/a



BABCOCK & BROWN JAPAN PROPERTY TRUST

Address 1-16-3, Shiba Daimon, Minato-ku,Tokyo
Approximately 100 metres (a one minute walk) from Daimon station on the Tokyo Metro Asakusa line

Sub-market Minato ward
Property type Multi-tenant office/retail/residential building

Shiba Daimon
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Property Overview
The Shiba Daimon property, built in 1994, is located on a major arterial road – route 15 – in the Minato ward of central
Tokyo, with a significant concentration of modern office accommodation in close proximity to a number of rail and
subway links and food and beverage stores.

The property is located in the Hamamatsucho/Shiba-koen area, which is served by the JR Hamamatsucho station, and
Shiba-koen and Onarimon stations of the Toei Mita subway line and Daimon station of the Toei Asakusa subway line.

The area attracts tenants seeking a convenient location both to the commuter suburbs and Haneda airport to the south
and the larger office and retail precincts of Ginza and Shinbashi to the north.

The Trust’s interest in this property comprises a condominium interest in levels B1, 1F, 4F and 5F out of a building of
nine floors.

Major Tenant Summary
% of Lease

Lease Total Expiry

Tenant Name Industry Type Rent Date

Toyota Industries Corp. Manufacture Standard 50.5% Oct 2005

Ichirokudo Food and Beverage Standard 49.5% Oct 2007

Total/Average 100% Oct 2006

Key Property Statistics

Summary

Ownership interest 100%

Purchase date 29 March 2005

Carrying value (billion) ¥0.8

Completed March 1994

Property Statistics

Land area (square metres) 517

Net rentable area 966 sqm (293 tsubo)

Occupancy by area 63.9%

Occupancy by income 66.1%

In Review

Occupancy

Occupancy by area remained stable between PDS and balance

date at 63.9%.

Lease Expirations

No leases expired during the period.

New Leases

No new leases were established during the period.

Cancelled Leases

No leases were cancelled during the period.

Net Rentable Area Occupied

No change during the period.

Capital Expenditure

n/a



BABCOCK & BROWN JAPAN PROPERTY TRUST

Address 4-25-5,Yotsuya, Shinjuku-ku,Tokyo
Approximately 470 metres (a six minute walk) from Shinjuku Gyoenmae station on the Tokyo Metro
Marunouchi line

Sub-market Shinjuku ward
Property type Multi-tenant office and residential building

Yotsuya KD
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Property Overview
The Yotsuya KD property is a small multi-tenant, predominantly office building of nine floors and basement, completed
in February 1990.The area from the ground floor to the seventh floor is leased as offices and the top two floors are used
as two residential units. It is located six minutes from the Shinjuku Gyoenmae station on the Marunouchi subway line
in central Tokyo.

Major Tenant Summary
% of Lease

Lease Total Expiry

Tenant Name Industry Type Rent Date

Taisei Manufacturing Standard 15.6% Mar 2006

Supply Telecommunication Standard 15.6% Jan 2006

Ito Fujita Patent Office Consultant Standard 15.0% Feb 2006

K.K. Medicom Advertising Standard 15.0% May 2007

Equal Design Manufacturing Standard 14.5% Aug 2005

Other Other tenants – 3 24.3%

Total/Average 100% Mar 2006

Key Property Statistics

Summary

Ownership interest 100%

Purchase date 29 March 2005

Carrying value (billion) ¥0.7

Completed February 1990

Property Statistics

Land area (square metres) 228

Net rentable area 1,200 sqm (363 tsubo)

Occupancy by area 92.3%

Occupancy by income 96.0%

In Review

Occupancy

Occupancy by area increased from 86.8% at the time of the PDS

to 92.3% at 30 June.

Lease Expirations

No leases expired during the period.

New Leases

One new lease was established during the period for 48 tsubo

(159 sqm) which is 13.2% of the property by area.

Cancelled Leases

One lease was cancelled during the period for 28 tsubo (93 sqm)

which is 7.7% of the property by area.

Net Rentable Area

Increased by 5.5% (20 tsubo/66 sqm) during the period.

Capital Expenditure

n/a



BABCOCK & BROWN JAPAN PROPERTY TRUST

Address 4-2-17, Nihonbashi Muromachi, Chuo-ku,Tokyo
Approximately 250 metres (a three minute walk) from Kanda station on the JR line

Sub-market Chuo ward
Property type Multi-tenant office/retail building

Sun No. 5
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Property Overview
The Sun No. 5 property is a small, multi-tenant office/retail building completed in May 1983 located a three minute walk
from the JR Kanda station in central Tokyo. Kanda station is one stop from Tokyo station on the main JR Yamanote line
which circles central Tokyo.

The property is adjacent to the Muromachi/Honcho office areas, where the head office of the Bank of Japan and the main
store of the Mitsukoshi department store chain are located. Many pharmaceutical/chemical companies are concentrated in
that nearby area, as are some Tokyo branches of regional banks and branches of larger city banks.

Major Tenant Summary
% of Lease

Lease Total Expiry

Tenant Name Industry Type Rent Date

Modish Miyanaga Fashion Standard 13.2% Apr 2007

Chris Land Retail Standard 13.1% Apr 2007

Kyoritsu Printing Printing Standard 13.1% Apr 2006

Ramura Food and Beverage Standard 12.7% Oct 2005

Koyo Shoji Wholesale Standard 12.2% May 2007

Other Other tenants – 4 35.7%

Total/Average 100% Jul 2006

Key Property Statistics

Summary

Ownership interest 100%

Purchase date 31 March 2005

Carrying value (billion) ¥0.4

Completed May 1983

Property Statistics

Land area (square metres) 157

Net rentable area 805 sqm (244 tsubo)

Occupancy by area 100%

Occupancy by income 100%

In Review

Occupancy

Occupancy by area remained stable between PDS and 30 June

at 100%.

Lease Expirations

Five leases (134 tsubo/443 sqm/54.9% of property by area)

expired during the period and 100% of these were renewed with

rental levels remaining constant.

New Leases

No new leases were established during the period.

Cancelled Leases

No leases were cancelled during the period.

Net Rentable Area Occupied

No change during the period.

Capital Expenditure

n/a
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Directors’ Report

The directors of Babcock & Brown Japan Property Management Limited (‘the Responsible Entity’), the Responsible
Entity of Babcock & Brown Japan Property Trust (‘the Trust’), present their report together with the financial report
of the Trust and of the Group, being the Trust and its controlled entities, for the period from 31 January 2005 to
30 June 2005 and the auditor’s report thereon.

The Trust was established, with Babcock & Brown Japan Property Management Limited as its Responsible Entity,
on 31 January 2005. The Trust became a registered scheme under the Corporations Act 2001 on 17 February 2005.
The Trust was listed on the Australian Stock Exchange on 4 April 2005.

Trust Information
The Trust, registered and domiciled in Australia, is a registered managed investment scheme.

The Investment Structure section of the Annual Report sets out the Trust’s interest in the Japanese Investments and
the management arrangements for the Trust and the Japanese Investments.

The life of the Trust is not limited by a term of years.

The registered office and principal place of business of the Responsible Entity and the Trust is Level 39, Chifley Tower,
2 Chifley Square, Sydney NSW 2000.

The Responsible Entity had three employees at the end of the period, being the Non-Executive Directors.

The Responsible Entity
The directors of the Responsible Entity at any time during or since the period end are:

ALLAN McDONALD Independent Non-Executive Chairman, member of the Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee
Allan has extensive experience in the investment and commercial banking fields and is presently associated with a
number of companies as a consultant and company director.Allan is Chairman of Ross Human Directions Limited,
Multiplex Limited and of the responsible entity of the Multiplex Property Trust and the Multiplex SITES Trust.
Allan’s other directorships include Billabong International Limited, Brambles Industries Limited and DCA Group
Limited.Allan was appointed as a director on 19 February 2005.

ERIC LUCAS Managing Director
Eric joined Babcock & Brown in 1987. Prior to joining Babcock & Brown, Eric worked in Tokyo at the international
law firm of Anderson Mori and Rabinowitz. In 1987, he joined Babcock & Brown at its Japanese joint venture,
Nomura Babcock & Brown, where he worked as its representative until 1992.After several years in the San Francisco
office of Babcock & Brown, in 1998 Eric returned to Tokyo to establish Babcock & Brown’s Japanese office. Eric
received his law degree from the University of Melbourne. Eric was appointed as a director on 19 November 2004.

PHIL GREEN Executive Director
Phil joined Babcock & Brown in 1984 and is Managing Director of Babcock & Brown Limited. Prior to joining
Babcock & Brown, Phil worked as a Senior Manager with Arthur Andersen where he specialised in taxation.
Phil is also Chairman of Babcock & Brown Infrastructure, Babcock & Brown Environmental Investments Limited and
of the responsible entity of the MTM Entertainment Trust, and is a director of Babcock & Brown Capital Limited,
Everest Babcock & Brown Alternative Investments,Abacus Property Group and Thakral Holdings Limited. Phil holds
Bachelor of Commerce and Bachelor of Law degrees from the University of New South Wales. He qualified as a
Chartered Accountant in 1981 and was admitted as a solicitor in NSW in 1978. Phil was appointed as a director on
31 January 2005.
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From left to right:Allan McDonald, Eric Lucas, Phil Green, Paula Dwyer and John Pettigrew.

PAULA DWYER Independent Non-Executive Director, member of the Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee
Paula has extensive experience in the securities, investment management and investment banking sectors. In particular,
Paula specialised in the provision of corporate financial advice to companies operating in regulated industries,
including financial institutions and utilities. Paula is a non-executive director and chairman of the audit, risk &
compliance committee for Promina Group Limited. She is also a non-executive director of David Jones Limited and
Tabcorp Holdings Limited. Paula holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of Melbourne. Paula is a
fellow of the Australian Institute of Chartered Accountants, a fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Directors
and an associate of the Securities Institute of Australia. Paula was appointed as a director on 19 February 2005.

JOHN PETTIGREW Independent Non-Executive Director, Chairman of the Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee
John has extensive financial and commercial experience with a number of major corporations and 30 years of
involvement in the property industry. John was Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Stockland Group
from 1977 and Finance Director from 1982 until his retirement in March 2004. He has had a significant role in
structuring and managing listed property trusts since 1980. John was appointed as a director on 19 February 2005.

DAVID ROSS Executive Director
David was appointed as a director on 19 November 2004 and retired as a director on 19 February 2005.

MICHAEL MAXWELL Executive Director
Michael was appointed as a director on 19 November 2004 and retired as a director on 31 January 2005.

PAUL FERGUSON Company Secretary
Paul was appointed as Company Secretary on 19 November 2004. Paul joined Babcock & Brown in 2001 and is the
Head of the Australian Legal and Compliance Group. Prior to joining Babcock & Brown, Paul was the National
Corporate Trust Manager for the trustee division of the National Australia Bank and Senior Associate in the Sydney
law firm Moray & Agnew. Paul holds a Bachelor of Laws and Bachelor of Science degrees from the University of
Sydney, is a member of the Law Society of New South Wales and is an affiliate of Chartered Secretaries Australia.

SARAH ZANON Company Secretary
Sarah was appointed as Company Secretary on 19 November 2004. Sarah joined Babcock & Brown in 2000 and is
a senior lawyer in the Australian Legal and Compliance Group. Prior to joining Babcock & Brown, Sarah worked in
senior legal and compliance roles within finance and funds management industries, including EquitiLink, Perpetual
Trustees and PriceWaterhouse. She holds Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting) and Bachelor of Laws degrees from the
University of New South Wales, as well as a Graduate Diploma in Applied Finance and Investment from the Securities
Institute of Australia.
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Meetings of Directors

The number of directors’ meetings (including meetings of the committee) and the number of meetings attended by
each of the directors of the Responsible Entity during the period from 31 January to 30 June 2005 were:

Audit, Risk &

Director Board Meetings Compliance Committee

A B A B

Allan McDonald 5 6 1 1

Eric Lucas 8 9 – –

Phil Green 5 8 – –

Paula Dwyer 4 6 1 1

John Pettigrew 4 6 1 1

David Ross 3 4 – –

Michael Maxwell 0 1 – –

A – Number of meetings attended.
B – Number of meetings held during the time the director held office during the year.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Trust during the financial period were investments in interests in properties in Japan,
with any surplus funds being invested in short term deposits. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Trust’s activities during the financial period.

Review and Results of Operations
The profit from ordinary activities after income tax amounted to $4,112,000 compared to $6,061,000 in the Forecast
Consolidated Statement of Financial Performance as disclosed in the PDS dated 21 February 2005. The main
differences were as follows:

Property related items

Net property income of $8.2 million was higher than the PDS forecast of $7.3 million due mainly to lower property
expenses relating to real estate tax in Japan, as well as earlier than forecast property acquisitions and slightly higher than
forecast occupancy rates.

Non-property related items

The results include amounts not forecast in the PDS, including most significantly a foreign currency gain of
$2.1 million, an unrealised gain on the current fair market value of derivatives of $5.0 million and a Trust Performance
Fee of $8.6 million. The latter became payable to the Responsible Entity because during the period the Trust
outperformed the S&P ASX 200 Property Accumulation Index by 18.08%.

Distributions

Distributions declared by the Trust since 31 January 2005, being the date of commencement, are 2.25 cents per unit
($6,301,994) in the form of a final distribution for the period ended 30 June 2005 compared to 2.11 cents per unit in
the Forecast Consolidated Statement of Financial Performance as disclosed in the Product Disclosure Document.

This distribution comprised an annualised return of 8.74% per annum for units held up to 30 June 2005.

Directors’ Report continued
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This comparison has been provided to assist users of the financial report in analysing the performance of the Group
against the forecast performance as disclosed in the Product Disclosure Document.

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs
In the opinion of the directors of the Responsible Entity, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the
Group that occurred during the financial period under review.

Environmental Regulation
To the best of their knowledge and belief after making due enquiry, the directors have determined that the Trust has
complied with all significant environmental regulations applicable to its operations in the jurisdictions it operates in.

Significant Events After the Balance Date
There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial period and the date of this report any item,
transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors of the Responsible Entity,
to affect significantly the operations of the Group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group,
in future financial years.

Future Developments and Results
In the opinion of the directors, disclosure of any further information on future developments and results other than
is already disclosed in this report or the financial statements would be unreasonably prejudicial to the interest of the
Group.

Interests of the Responsible Entity
The Responsible Entity holds 13,570,014 units (4.84%) directly in the Trust.As at 30 June 2005, the Babcock &
Brown group and its associates held 19,370,014 units (6.92%) in the Trust, which includes the Responsible Entity’s
holding as above.

Responsible Entity’s Remuneration
The basis of fees paid to the Responsible Entity is set out in Note 32 to the financial statements. Set out below are
the fees paid or payable by the Trust to the Responsible Entity and its associates during the period:

31/01/05

to 30/06/05

$’000

Trust base fee – payable to Responsible Entity 149

Asset base fee – payable to Japan Manager 526

TK minority interest – payable to TK Operator 44

Total base fees 719

Asset performance fee –

Trust performance fee 8,611

Total performance fees 8,611

Total asset management fees 9,330

Reimbursement of Trust expenses –

Amounts paid or payable to the Responsible Entity including the net effect of GST 9,330
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Directors’ Report continued

30/06/05

$’000

The following amounts are included in accounts payable as owed to the Responsible Entity or 
related parties at balance date relating to the asset management fees (including GST or 
Japanese consumption tax) 10,093

Directors’ Interests
The relevant interests of each director of the Responsible Entity in units of the Trust at the date of this report are set
out below:

Director Type of Unit Number Held

Allan McDonald Ordinary 200,000

Eric Lucas Ordinary 4,000,000

Phil Green Ordinary 1,000,000

Paula Dwyer Ordinary 500,000

John Pettigrew Ordinary 100,000

Units on Issue
280,088,640 units of the Trust were on issue as at 30 June 2005. During the period, 280,088,640 units were issued by
the Trust as part of the initial public offering in March 2005.

Trust Assets
At 30 June 2005 the Trust held assets to a total value of $561,456,000. The basis for valuation of the assets is disclosed
in Note 1 to the financial statements.
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration
The Group’s lead auditor has provided a written declaration under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 that to
the best of his knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of:
• the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and
• the applicable Australian code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

The declaration is provided on page 58 and forms part of this Directors’ Report.

Indemnification and Insurance of Officers and Auditors
Indemnification

Under the Trust Constitution the Responsible Entity, including its officers and employees, is indemnified out of the
Trust’s assets for any loss, damage, expense or other liability incurred by it in properly performing or exercising any of
its powers, duties or rights in relation to the Trust.

Since the date of commencement, the Trust has not indemnified or made a relevant agreement for indemnifying
against a liability any person who is or has been an auditor of the Trust.

Insurance premiums

As part of its insurance arrangements, the Responsible Entity pays insurance premiums in respect of Directors’ and
Officers’ Liability insurance contracts covering directors and officers of the Responsible Entity. It is not possible to
separately identify the proportion of the premiums that are paid by the Responsible Entity on behalf of current and
former directors and officers of the Responsible Entity.

Officers who were Partners of the Auditor for the Year
No current officers have been partners of PricewaterhouseCoopers at a time when that firm was the auditor of
the Trust.

Rounding
The Trust is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998 and in accordance with that Class
Order, amounts in the financial report and the Directors’ Report have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars
unless otherwise stated.

Dated at Sydney this 24th day of August 2005.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

F A McDONALD
Chairman
Babcock & Brown Japan Property Management Limited



Auditor’s Independence Declaration
As lead auditor for the audit of Babcock & Brown Japan Property Trust for the period ended 30 June 2005,
I declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

(a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to
the audit; and

(b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Babcock & Brown Japan Property Trust and the entities it controlled during
the period.

J A Dunning Sydney
Partner 24 August 2005
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Liability is limited by the Accountant’s Scheme under the Professional Standards Act 1994 (NSW)

PricewaterhouseCoopers

ABN 52 780 433 757

Darling Park Tower 2

201 Sussex Street

GPO Box 2650

SYDNEY NSW 1171

DX 77 Sydney

Australia

www.pwc.com/au

Telephone +61 2 8266 0000

Facsimile +61 2 8266 9999
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Introduction
The Board of Directors of the Responsible Entity of the
Trust is responsible for establishing a sound framework
of corporate governance and implementing the
corresponding governance culture and processes for the
Trust. The Board recognises that corporate governance
and good governance procedures can add to the
performance of the Trust, increase unitholder value and
engender the confidence of the investment community.

The ASX Corporate Governance Council has developed
a set of guidelines entitled Principles of Good Corporate
Governance and Best Practice Recommendations.
These guidelines articulate 10 core principles (‘the ASX
Principles’) that the Council believes underlie good
corporate governance, together with 28 recommendations
(‘the ASX Recommendations’) for implementing effective
corporate governance.

The Trust commenced trading on the ASX on 4 April
2005.Accordingly, this Corporate Governance Statement
relates to the period from 4 April 2005 to 30 June 2005.

Principle 1: Lay Solid Foundations for
Management and Oversight
Role of the Board and Management

The directors of the Responsible Entity have adopted
a formal Board Charter which details the functions
and responsibilities of the Board and distinguishes such
functions and responsibilities from those which have
been delegated to management.

As outlined in the Board Charter, the Board is responsible
for the management of the affairs of the Responsible
Entity in relation to the Trust, including:

• developing, approving and monitoring the strategy,
financial plans and objectives of the Trust;

• determining the Trust’s distribution policy and
evaluating, approving and monitoring major capital
expenditure, capital management and all major
investments, divestitures and other transactions of
the Trust, including the issue of securities;

• approving all accounting policies, financial reports
and material reporting by the Trust;

• reviewing and evaluating the performance of the
Board, each Board committee, and each individual
director against the relevant charters, corporate
governance policies and agreed goals and objectives;

• reviewing the performance of the Managing Director
and other senior executives on an annual basis and
providing a report of such review to Babcock &
Brown (the Responsible Entity’s parent);

• in consultation with Babcock & Brown, appointing
the Chairman and the Company Secretary of the
Responsible Entity;

• ensuring that effective audit, risk management and
regulatory compliance programmes are in place to
protect the Trust’s assets and unitholder value and
approving and monitoring the Trust’s risk and audit
framework;

• reviewing the performance and effectiveness of the
Trust’s corporate governance policies and procedures;
and

• setting the goals and objectives for the Board and its
committees each year.

The Board Charter also sets out the specific powers
and responsibilities of the Chairman and the Managing
Director (see Principle 2 below). Those delegated powers
are subject to the specific powers and authorities
delegated to the Board committees and the following
powers which are retained by the Board:

• contracts, commitments and capital expenditure
above specified thresholds and limits determined by
the Board from time to time;

• expenditure outside the ordinary course of business
in excess of thresholds or limits specified by the
Board for this purpose;

• major strategic decisions for the Trust;
• adoption of the Trust’s annual budget;
• approval of financial reports and accounts of the Trust

and the Responsible Entity which are to be lodged
with any regulator, including the ASX;

• the issue of any equity securities in the Trust, except
under a programme previously approved by the
Board; and

• commencing or taking a significant step in major
litigation.

Corporate Governance Statement
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The Board Charter includes a summary of the
responsibilities of each director. To assist directors’
understanding of the Responsible Entity’s expectations
of them in relation to the Trust, the Non-Executive
Directors have been issued with formal letters of
appointment by the Responsible Entity and the Executive
Directors have formal employment contracts governing
their employment by Babcock & Brown.

A summary of the Board Charter is available on the
Trust’s website.

Principle 2: Structure the Board to Add Value
Structure of the Board

The size and composition of the Board is determined
in accordance with the Constitution of the Responsible
Entity. In accordance with the Board Charter, it is
intended that the Board will comprise a majority of
independent Non-Executive Directors with a broad range
of skills, expertise and experience from a diverse range of
backgrounds. The Board is currently comprised of the
following five members:

Name Position

Independent (Y/N) First appointed

Allan McDonald Non-Executive Chairman
Y 2005

Eric Lucas Managing Director
N 2004

Paula Dwyer Non-Executive Director
Y 2005

Phil Green Executive Director
N 2005

John Pettigrew Non-Executive Director
Y 2005

Details of the experience and expertise of the directors
are set out in the Directors’ Report.

As indicated above, the Board had a majority of
independent directors at all times during the period
from 4 April to 30 June 2005 and its Chairman is an
independent director. Furthermore, the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer (in this case, the Managing

Director) are not exercised by the same person. The
respective roles and responsibilities of the Chairman
and the Managing Director are described in the Board
Charter.

The Board has adopted a definition of independent
director which is consistent with that set out in
Recommendation 2.1, and with the definition set out
in section 601JA of the Corporations Act in relation to
registered managed investment schemes.

Each director of the Responsible Entity is entitled to
seek independent professional advice at the Responsible
Entity’s expense on any matter connected with the
discharge of his or her responsibilities in accordance
with the procedure set out in the Board Charter.

Given the small size of the Board, the directors have
decided not to establish a Nomination Committee. This
is inconsistent with ASX Recommendation 2.5, although
that recommendation itself recognises that a Nomination
Committee does not provide the same efficiencies
for smaller boards.As the Responsible Entity is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Babcock & Brown, the
selection and appointment of new directors to the Board
may be made by the directors or by Babcock & Brown in
accordance with the Constitution of the Responsible
Entity. In practice, Babcock & Brown and the Board will
consult with each other and assess the appropriate mix of
skills, experience and expertise required on the Board at
the time of making any future appointment of directors.

The composition of the committees of the Board is
determined by the Board.

Principle 3: Promote Ethical and Responsible
Decision Making
Code of Conduct

The Responsible Entity is committed to delivering strong
returns and unitholder value whilst also promoting
unitholder and general market confidence in the Trust.
As a wholly owned subsidiary of Babcock & Brown, the
Responsible Entity and its directors and staff are subject
to the Code of Conduct of the Babcock & Brown group.
The Code of Conduct, as it applies to the Trust, is
designed to ensure that:

Corporate Governance Statement continued
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• high standards of corporate and individual behaviour
are observed by all directors and staff in the context
of their roles; and

• staff are aware of their responsibilities to the Trust
and always act in an ethical and professional manner.

The Code of Conduct requires directors and staff to
avoid conflicts of interest, not take advantage of
opportunities arising from their position for personal gain
and to comply with the Trust’s Securities Trading Policy
and the other policies of the Babcock & Brown group.

The Code of Conduct requires directors and staff to
report any actual or potential breach of the law, the Code
of Conduct or other policies. The Responsible Entity
promotes and encourages ethical behaviour and provides
protection for those who report violations.A summary
of the Code of Conduct is available on the website of
Babcock & Brown Limited.

In addition to the Code of Conduct, the Board Charter
requires that all directors conduct their duties at the
highest level of honesty and integrity, observe the rule
and the spirit of the law, comply with any relevant ethical
and technical standards, not make improper use of any
confidential information, and set a high standard of
fairness, diligence and competency in their position
as a director.

Securities Trading Policy

The Responsible Entity has adopted a Securities Trading
Policy which regulates the manner in which directors
and staff can buy or sell units in the Trust, and requires
that they conduct their personal investment activities
in a manner that is lawful and avoids conflicts between
their own interests and those of the Responsible Entity
and the Trust. The policy is specifically designed to raise
awareness and minimise any potential for breach of the
prohibitions on insider trading contained in the
Corporations Act.

The policy specifies trading windows as the periods
during which trading in units in the Trust may occur.
These trading windows will generally be the eight week
periods following the release of the Trust’s full year and
half year results and Annual Report, and the offer period
under any publicly available offer document or product

disclosure document issued by the Responsible Entity
offering units in the Trust. Trading is prohibited despite a
window being open if the relevant person is in possession
of non-public price sensitive information regarding the
Trust. The Board may authorise the opening of trading
windows at other times.

A summary of the Securities Trading Policy is available
on the Trust’s website.

Principle 4: Safeguard Integrity in Financial
Reporting
Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee

The Board has established an Audit, Risk & Compliance
Committee which is responsible for advising the Board
on internal controls and appropriate standards for the
management of the Trust. The Committee oversees
the financial reporting process, the system of internal
control and risk management, the audit process and the
Responsible Entity’s processes for monitoring compliance
with laws and regulations. The Committee also assists
the Board to discharge its responsibilities under the
Compliance Plan adopted by the Responsible Entity for
the Trust. The Committee works on behalf of the Board
with the external auditor and reviews non-audit services
provided by the external auditor to confirm that they are
consistent with maintaining external audit independence.

The Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee provides
advice to the Board and reports on the status of the
business risks to the Trust through its implementation and
supervision of the Responsible Entity’s risk management
framework for the Trust which is aimed at ensuring risks
are identified, assessed and properly managed.

The Committee is wholly comprised of independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr Pettigrew (who
is Chairman of the Committee), Ms Dwyer and
Mr McDonald.

The Committee met once during the period from
4 April to 30 June 2005 and all Committee members
attended that meeting. The Committee has also met once
since 30 June 2005 in connection with the approval of
the Trust’s financial statements.
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The Committee has adopted a Charter, a summary
of which is available on the Trust’s website. The
responsibilities of the Committee pursuant to its
Charter include:

• reviewing the financial statements of the Trust for the
half year and full year and considering whether they
are complete, consistent with information known
to Committee members and reflect appropriate
accounting policies and principles;

• reviewing with management and the external auditor
the results of the audit;

• reviewing the effectiveness of the Responsible
Entity’s internal controls regarding all matters
affecting the Trust’s financial performance, financial
reporting and regulatory compliance;

• reviewing with management and the internal auditor
the charter, plans and activities of the internal audit
activity and reviewing the effectiveness of such
activity;

• meeting separately from management with the
external auditor at least once a year to discuss any
matters that the Committee or auditor believe should
be discussed privately;

• reviewing and confirming the independence of the
external auditor by obtaining statements from the
auditor on relationships between the auditor and the
Trust, including in respect of non-audit services;

• considering the overall risk management framework
for the Trust and reviewing its effectiveness in
meeting sound corporate governance principles and
identifying, managing and monitoring the key risks
of the Trust;

• monitoring the extent to which the Responsible
Entity complies with the Trust’s Compliance Plan,
the Corporations Act and the Trust’s Constitution
and reviewing the effectiveness of the system for
monitoring compliance with laws and regulations
affecting the Trust and the Responsible Entity; and

• providing an open avenue of communication
between the external financial auditor, the
Compliance Plan auditor and the Board.

The Committee meets at least four times a year and
reports to the full Board following each meeting,
including in respect of recommendations of the
Committee that require Board approval or action.

To assist the Board and the Audit, Risk & Compliance
Committee in discharging their respective responsibilities,
the Managing Director and the Financial Controller are
required to provide the Board and the Committee with
a letter of representation in connection with the half year
and full year financial statements of the Trust. Such letter
of representation confirms to the Board that the Trust’s
financial reports present a true and fair view, in all
material respects, of the Trust’s financial condition and
operational results and are in accordance with relevant
accounting standards. The letter describes the process
and evidence that the Managing Director and Financial
Controller have adopted to satisfy themselves on these
matters.

In respect of the period ended 30 June 2005, the
Managing Director and Financial Controller provided
such a letter to the Board and the Committee (refer to
the Directors’ Declaration).

Principle 5: Make Timely and Balanced
Disclosure
Continuous Disclosure Policy

The Responsible Entity is committed to complying
with its continuous disclosure obligations pursuant to
the Corporations Act and the ASX Listing Rules. In this
regard, the Responsible Entity has adopted a Continuous
Disclosure Policy with the intention of ensuring that all
investors have equal and timely access to material
information concerning the Trust.

The policy is designed to ensure that material price
sensitive information arising from the activities of the
Trust is immediately notified to the ASX in a complete,
balanced and timely manner, unless it falls within the
scope of the limited exemptions contained in Listing
Rule 3.1A.

The Company Secretary of the Responsible Entity, in
conjunction with the Chairman and the Managing
Director, is responsible for overseeing the implementation
and operation of the policy. The Company Secretary is
responsible for reviewing information reported by the
directors or staff and which is or may be material,
determining with the Chairman and the Managing
Director whether any such information is required to be
disclosed to the ASX, and making ASX announcements
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and issuing media releases and other written public
statements on behalf of the Responsible Entity in relation
to the Trust. Staff of the Responsible Entity are required
to ensure that they are familiar with the policy, report
material information to the Company Secretary and
provide sufficient details to the Company Secretary to
allow a view to be formed as to whether the information
requires disclosure.

In addition, the Board is actively and regularly involved
in discussing disclosure obligations in respect of all major
matters that come before it.

A summary of the Continuous Disclosure Policy is
available on the Trust’s website.

Principle 6: Respect the Rights of Unitholders
Communications with Unitholders

Consistent with the Continuous Disclosure Policy for
the Trust, the Responsible Entity is committed to
communicating with unitholders in an effective and
timely manner so as to provide them with ready access
to information relating to the Trust. In this regard,
the Responsible Entity maintains an extensive website
(www.bbjapanpropertytrust.com) which provides access
to the following information of interest to unitholders:

• information regarding the Board, executive
management and the activities of the Trust;

• all announcements and media releases in relation
to the Trust;

• copies of full year and interim financial reports;
• summaries of Board and Committee Charters and

relevant corporate governance policies;
• a copy of the Product Disclosure Statement relating

to the Trust’s listing on the ASX; and
• access to the website of the Trust’s Unit Registry,

including a facility for unitholders to amend their
particulars.

The Responsible Entity encourages unitholders to utilise
the Trust’s website as their primary tool to access
unitholder information and disclosures. In addition, the
Annual Report facilitates the provision to unitholders
by the Responsible Entity on a yearly basis of detailed
information in respect of the major achievements,
financial results and strategic direction of the Trust.

The Responsible Entity has a practice of ensuring that
all information to be given by the Responsible Entity
in relation to the Trust at analyst and investor briefings
is first released to the ASX to ensure that the market
operates on an equal basis.

The Responsible Entity is not required to hold annual
general meetings for the Trust, however it may convene
general meetings from time to time.Where the
Responsible Entity convenes a general meeting for the
Trust, unitholders are strongly encouraged to attend and
participate in such meetings. The Responsible Entity will
provide unitholders with details of any proposed meeting
well in advance of the relevant date.

In the event that a general meeting is convened at
which the Trust’s accounts will be considered, the Trust’s
external auditor will be requested to attend and be
available to answer unitholder questions about the
conduct of the audit and the preparation and content
of the auditor’s report.

Principle 7: Recognise and Manage Risk
Risk Management Policy

The Board, through its Audit, Risk & Compliance
Committee, retains ultimate responsibility for risk
management in relation to the Trust. In accordance with
its Charter, the role of the Committee includes reviewing
with management the system for identifying, managing
and monitoring the key risks of the Trust and obtaining
reports from management on the status of any key risk
exposures or incidents.

The Responsible Entity has undertaken a review of its
risk management framework and has adopted a Risk
Management Policy, consistent with Australia/New
Zealand Standard 4360, which clearly defines
responsibilities for managing risk under the Trust’s risk
management process. The principal risks of the Trust’s
business, including operational, financial, market,
regulatory and compliance risks, have been identified
and are required to be regularly managed, monitored
and reported. Methods for treating and mitigating risks
include transferring, reducing, accepting or passing on
risks following assessment using a variety of methods.
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In accordance with the requirements of the Corporations
Act, the Responsible Entity has also put in place
a Compliance Plan in relation to the Trust. The
Compliance Plan sets out the measures that the
Responsible Entity applies in operating the Trust to
ensure compliance with the Corporations Act, the
Constitution of the Trust, the Responsible Entity’s licence
obligations and other regulatory parameters. The
discharge by the Responsible Entity and its staff of their
obligations under the Compliance Plan is monitored by
the Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee.This provides
the primary tool by which the Responsible Entity manages
the legal and regulatory risks associated with the Trust.

The Compliance Plan auditor undertakes an audit of the
manner in which the Responsible Entity has discharged
its obligations under the Compliance Plan on an annual
basis, and reviews such compliance on a half yearly basis.

The Compliance Manager of the Responsible Entity will
administer the Risk Management Policy and the
Compliance Plan for the Trust and report to the Audit,
Risk & Compliance Committee on these matters. The
Compliance Manager will also liaise with the Group Risk
Manager of the Babcock & Brown group in relation to
the management of the Trust’s key risks.

The Responsible Entity did not have an internal audit
function during the period to 30 June 2005 as
contemplated in the commentary to Recommendation 7.1.
The Babcock & Brown group has recently engaged an
independent external provider of internal audit services and,
during the 2005/2006 financial year, the scope of those
services will be extended to the Responsible Entity and the
Trust.The internal auditor will also facilitate review of the
Trust’s risk management framework and system, including
recording and testing of key financial controls and
development of an appropriate internal audit programme.
The internal auditor will provide reports to the Audit, Risk
& Compliance Committee.

As outlined above, and consistent with
Recommendation 7.2, the Managing Director and
Financial Controller provided the Board and the Audit,
Risk & Compliance Committee with a letter of
representation in connection with the financial statements
of the Trust for the period ended 30 June 2005. In

addition to confirming to the Board that the Trust’s
financial reports present a true and fair view and accord
with relevant accounting standards, the letter described
the process and evidence that the Managing Director and
Financial Controller relied upon to satisfy themselves
that such statements were based on internal compliance
and control systems applicable to the Trust’s operations
which were operating efficiently and effectively in all
material respects.

The Responsible Entity is committed to ensuring that
its system of risk oversight, management and internal
control in relation to the Trust and its business complies
with the ASX Principles and that its culture, processes
and structures facilitate realisation of the Trust’s business
objectives, including potential opportunities, while
managing adverse effects and preserving capital.

Principle 8: Encourage Enhanced Performance
Performance Evaluation Process

The Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring
the performance of the Chairman, the Managing Director
and other individual members of the Board, and for
establishing the performance criteria against which such
performance can be evaluated.

In addition, the Board Charter requires the Board, at least
once a year, to review and evaluate the performance of
the Board, its committees and each individual director
against the relevant charters, corporate governance
policies and agreed goals and objectives. Following each
review and evaluation, the Board will consider how to
improve its performance.

The Board also sets the goals and objectives for itself and
its committees each year and, if necessary, amends the
relevant charters and policies to better reflect these goals
and objectives.

Given the small size of the Board and the fact that it has
not established a Nomination Committee (refer to
Principle 2 above), the above functions are reserved for
the Board. This does not accord with the ASX’s suggested
approach in relation to Principle 8.

As the Trust has only been listed since April 2005, the
above performance reviews have not been undertaken in
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respect of the initial period. The first full review of the
performance of the Board as a whole, its committees and
individual members will be undertaken in respect of the
2005/2006 financial year.

The review of the performance of key executives of the
Responsible Entity is undertaken by the Managing
Director in conjunction with senior management of
Babcock & Brown.

Principle 9: Remunerate Fairly and
Responsibly
Executive Remuneration

The two Executive Directors of the Responsible Entity,
Mr Green and Mr Lucas, are employees of the Babcock
& Brown group. Similarly, staff of the Responsible Entity
are employees of the Babcock & Brown group who have
been seconded to the Responsible Entity.As such, all of
these people are remunerated by the Babcock & Brown
group, and not by the Responsible Entity or the Trust.

The remuneration practices of the Babcock & Brown
group apply to the remuneration of the above Executive
Directors and staff. For details regarding the remuneration
practices of the Babcock & Brown group, please refer
to the Remuneration Report in the Annual Report of
Babcock & Brown Limited. Such remuneration practices
are structured to be competitive and to ensure that the
Babcock & Brown group can attract and retain the talent
needed to achieve both short and long-term success,
while maintaining a strong focus on teamwork, individual
performance and the interests of unitholders.

Total remuneration of such Executive Directors and staff
by the Babcock & Brown group is delivered through base
salary, an annual performance bonus and, for some
executives, through an equity incentive plan of Babcock
& Brown Limited. The levels of performance bonus and
equity incentive plan participation of such Executive
Directors and staff will be, either wholly or partly,
determined by reference to the performance of the Trust
and their individual performance in connection with
the Trust. In this respect there is an alignment of the
remuneration of such Executive Directors and senior staff
with the performance of the Trust.

However, the Board acknowledges that the remuneration
of the Executive Directors by the Babcock & Brown
group is also partly determined by reference to the
performance of that group and their individual
performance in connection with the group.This may
also be the case in respect of some senior staff of the
Responsible Entity from time to time. In this regard, the
Board recognises that there is scope for potential conflicts
of interest to arise, both in terms of the Babcock &
Brown group’s dealings with the Trust and in terms of
the dual roles of the Executive Directors and certain staff.
For instance, the Babcock & Brown group is expected to
earn fees and other income from its dealings with the
Trust, and the remuneration of the Executive Directors by
the Babcock & Brown group may be partly determined
by reference to the level of such fees and income.

The most important mechanism to deal with such
potential conflicts of interest is that the Board is comprised
of a majority of Non-Executive Directors, who thus
control its decisions. In addition, the Board implements
steps to ensure that the conflicts are declared, managed
and, where practicable, removed. Such steps include
ensuring that Executive Directors declare a conflict in
circumstances where there are material dealings between
the Babcock & Brown group and the Trust and that, in
those cases, Executive Directors abstain from voting on
all such matters. Other steps may include seeking
independent third party advice or verification, engaging
an alternative person to provide the relevant service, or
having matters considered by a Committee of the Board
comprised solely of Non-Executive Directors.These
measures are designed to ensure that, in the event of any
conflict of interest, the interests of unitholders are given
priority over the interests of the Responsible Entity, the
Babcock & Brown group and the Executive Directors.

The equity incentive plan described above relates only
to Babcock & Brown Limited securities, and does not
involve the issuance of units, options or other securities
of the Trust.
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Non-Executive Directors’ Remuneration

Non-Executive Directors are paid an annual fee for their
service on the Board and all committees of the Board.
Non-Executive Directors are not provided with
retirement benefits other than statutory superannuation
and do not receive options or bonus payments.

All Non-Executive Director remuneration is paid by the
Responsible Entity and is not an expense of the Trust.

Given the relatively simple nature of the above
remuneration practices and the fact that they do not
impact upon the financial performance of the Trust, the
Board has not established a Remuneration Committee.
This does not accord with ASX Recommendation 9.2,
although such recommendation again notes that a
Remuneration Committee is more appropriate for
larger companies.

Principle 10: Recognise the Legitimate
Interests of Stakeholders
Obligations to Non-Unitholder Stakeholders

The Responsible Entity recognises that it has a number
of legal and other obligations to stakeholders who are
not, or may not be, unitholders in the Trust, including its
staff and the wider community.

As outlined above, the Responsible Entity and its
directors and staff are subject to the Code of Conduct
of the Babcock & Brown group which requires directors
and staff to observe high standards of corporate and
individual behaviour. The objectives of the Code, as it
relates to the Responsible Entity, include ensuring that
staff and competitors can be assured that the Responsible
Entity will conduct its affairs in relation to the Trust in
accordance with ethical values and practices. Staff are
required to comply with both the spirit as well as the
letter of the ASX Listing Rules and all laws which govern
the operations of the Trust, and to deal with unitholders,
competitors and other staff in a manner that is lawful,
diligent and fair and with honesty, integrity and respect.

In accordance with the Code of Conduct, the
Responsible Entity aims to provide a work environment
in which all staff can excel regardless of race, religion,
age, disability, gender, sexual preference or marital status.
In this regard, the Babcock & Brown group, of which
the Responsible Entity is a member, maintains various
policies relating to the workplace, including in respect
of occupational health and safety issues.

In accordance with the Code of Conduct and the
Continuous Disclosure Policy described above, the
Responsible Entity is committed to delivering to the
market accurate, timely and up-to-date information so
that, in relation to the units in the Trust, the entire
investment community operates on an informed and
equal basis.

These principles of fairness, honesty and propriety are
essential elements of the various policies which have
been adopted by the Responsible Entity.
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Income Statements
For the period ended 30 June 2005

Consolidated Trust
31/01/05 31/01/05

to 30/06/05 to 30/06/05
Note $’000 $’000

Property rental income 9,505 –

Property expense (1,267) –

Net property income 8,238 –

Unrealised gain on derivatives 4,951 4,951

Other operating income 2 2,125 6,462

Asset management fee 32 (9,286) (8,760)

Other operating expenses 3 (1,738) (200)

Operating profit before financing costs 4,290 2,453

Financial income 1,095 1,095

Financial expenses (842) –

Net finance costs 4 253 1,095

Share of net profit of associates 13 900 –

Profit before tax 5,443 3,548

Income tax expense 5 (1,287) (1,287)

Profit for the period 4,156 2,261

Net profit attributable to minority interests 25 (44) –

Net profit attributable to unitholders 24 4,112 2,261

Distribution payable 24 6,302

Distribution per unit payable 2.25¢

Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary unit 7 2.36¢

Adjusted basic and diluted earnings per ordinary unit 7 1.47¢

Distribution per ordinary unit 2.25¢

The income statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 72 to 96.
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Statements of Changes in Equity
For the period ended 30 June 2005

Consolidated Trust
31/01/05 31/01/05

to 30/06/05 to 30/06/05
Note $’000 $’000

Total equity at the beginning of the period – –

Foreign exchange translation differences 22 (6,175) –

Net income recognised directly in equity (6,175) –

Profit for the period 24 4,112 2,261

Total recognised income and expense for the period (2,063) 2,261

Transactions with unitholders in their capacity as unitholders:

Contributions of equity, net of transaction costs 21 270,611 270,848

Distributions provided for 24 (6,302) (6,302)

264,309 264,546

Total equity at the end of the financial period 262,246 266,807

The statements of changes in equity are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 72 to 96.
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Balance Sheets
As at 30 June 2005

Consolidated Trust
30/06/05 30/06/05

Note $’000 $’000

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 8 33,967 3,432

Trade and other receivables 9 8,239 8,757

Derivative financial instruments 10 1,473 1,473

Other assets 11 192 –

Total current assets 43,871 13,662

Non-current assets

Derivative financial instruments 10 4,275 4,275

Other financial assets 12 119 265,912

Investments in associates accounted for using the equity method 13 46,853 –

Investment properties 14 466,092 –

Other assets 11 246 –

Total non-current assets 517,585 270,187

Total assets 561,456 283,849

Current liabilities

Payables 15 12,406 6,203

Tenant deposits 16 25,652 –

Distribution payable 17 6,302 6,302

Current tax liabilities 18 867 867

Total current liabilities 45,227 13,372

Non-current liabilities

Payables 15 4,048 3,494

Tenant deposits 16 4,754 –

Interest bearing debt 19 245,005 –

Deferred tax liabilities 20 176 176

Total non-current liabilities 253,983 3,670

Total liabilities 299,210 17,042

Net assets 262,246 266,807

Equity

Unitholders’ fund

Contributed equity 21 266,570 266,807

Reserves 22 (6,175) –

Undistributed income 24 1,851 –

Unitholders’ interest 262,246 266,807

Minority interest 25 – –

Total equity 262,246 266,807

The balance sheets are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 72 to 96.
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Cash Flow Statements
For the period ended 30 June 2005

Consolidated Trust
31/01/05 31/01/05

to 30/06/05 to 30/06/05
Note $’000 $’000

Cash flows from operating activities

Property rental income received 11,113 –

Property expenses paid (784) –

Trust net property income received 10,329 –

Other operating expenses paid (1,119) (254)

Financing expense (1,079) –

Financing income 145 145

Japanese withholding tax paid (234) (243)

GST/consumption tax received 458 –

GST/consumption tax paid (7,830) –

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from operating activities 31 670 (352)

Cash from investing activities

Acquisition of investments (48,005) (268,278)

Acquisition of investment properties (438,511) –

Acquisition costs on purchase of investment properties (1,053) –

Distributions received from associates 1,214 1,214

Net cash outflows from investing activities (486,355) (267,064)

Cash from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of units 280,089 280,089

Payment of transaction costs (9,478) (9,241)

Proceeds from borrowings 250,572 –

Net cash inflows from financing activities 521,183 270,848

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 35,498 3,432

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial period – –

Effect on exchange rate fluctuations on cash held (1,531) –

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial period 8 33,967 3,432

The cash flow statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 72 to 96.



BABCOCK & BROWN JAPAN PROPERTY TRUST

72

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 June 2005

Note 1 Statement of Significant Accounting
Policies
Babcock & Brown Japan Property Trust (‘the Trust’) is a
Trust domiciled in Australia. The consolidated financial
report of the Trust for the period ended 30 June 2005
comprise the Trust and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the ‘consolidated entity’) and the consolidated
entity’s interest in associates.

The financial report was authorised for issue by the
directors on 24 August 2005. The Responsible Entity has
the power to amend and reissue this financial report.

(a) Statement of Compliance

The financial report is a general purpose financial
report which has been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards, Urgent Issues Group
Interpretations adopted by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board (‘AASB’) and the Corporations Act 2001.
International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’)
form the basis of Australian Accounting Standards adopted
by the AASB, being Australian equivalents to IFRS
(‘A-IFRS’).

Compliance with A-IFRS ensures that the consolidated
financial statements and notes and the parent entity
financial statements and notes of the Trust comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

(b) Basis of Preparation

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars.

The financial report is prepared on the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and liabilities are
stated at their fair value: derivative financial instruments
and investment properties.

Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower
of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

The Trust is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class
Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998 and in accordance
with that Class Order, amounts in the financial report
and Directors’ Report have been rounded off to the
nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of a financial report in conformity with
Australian Accounting Standards requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect

the application of policies and reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources.Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods. There have been
no judgements made by management in the application
of Australian Accounting Standards that have significant
effect on the financial report and estimates with a
significant risk of material adjustment in the next year.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently throughout the reporting period and applied
consistently by consolidated entities. No comparatives
have been provided as this is the first period of operation
for the Trust.

(c) Principles of Consolidation

(i) The tokumei kumiai (‘TK’)
The consolidated financial information of the Trust
incorporates the beneficial interest in 100% of the assets
and liabilities arising from the contractual relationships
between the Trust and the operator of the TK (‘TK
Operator’), JPT Co., Ltd., a Japanese company. The
contractual relationships are known under Japanese
commercial law as a TK. The Trust will be entitled to
99% of the profits and losses of the business of the TK.
Under Japanese commercial law a TK is not a legal entity
but a contractual relationship or contractual relationships
between one or more investors and the TK operator.

The consolidated financial information of the Trust
incorporates the results of the TK from the date on
which the TK agreement was signed.

The investment in the TK is carried at the cost of
acquisition in the Trust’s financial statements.
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(ii) Associates
Associates are those entities in which the consolidated
entity has significant influence, but not control, over the
financial and operating policies. The consolidated financial
statements include the consolidated entity’s share of the
total recognised gains and losses of associates on an equity
accounted basis, from the date that significant influence
ceases.When the consolidated entity’s share of losses
exceeds its interest in an associate, the consolidated
entity’s carrying amount is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that
the consolidated entity has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of an associate.

Investments held through associates are accounted for
under the equity accounting method. Under this method,
the consolidated entity’s share of the profits or losses of
each associate is recognised as income in the income
statement, and its share of movements in reserves is
recognised in the balance sheet. Investments accounted
for under the equity method comprise the 30% interest
in Kawasaki Dice Tokutei Mokuteki Kaisha (‘KDTMK’)
which is held through an indirect economic interest.

(iii)Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and any unrealised gains and losses
or income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised gains arising from
transactions with associates are eliminated to the extent
of the consolidated entity’s interest in the entity with
adjustments made to the ‘Investment in associates’ and
‘Share of associate’s net profit’ accounts. Unrealised losses
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains,
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised as the
contributed assets are consumed or sold by the associates
or, if not consumed or sold by the associate, when
the consolidated entity’s interest in such entities is
disposed of.

(d) Foreign Currency

(i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the
consolidated entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Australian dollars,
which is the Trust’s functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are translated to
Australian dollars at the foreign exchange rate ruling
at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on
translation are recognised in the income statement.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated to Australian dollars at foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

(iii)Foreign interest
As the TK Operator is self-sustaining, the beneficial
interest in the assets and liabilities arising from the TK are
translated into Australian currency at rates of exchange
current at balance date, while their income and
expenditures are translated at the average of rates ruling
during the financial period or at hedge rates where
applicable. Exchange differences arising on translation
are taken to the foreign currency translation reserve.

(e) Derivative Financial Instruments

The consolidated entity uses derivative financial
instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange
arising from operational, financing and investment
activities. In accordance with its treasury policy, the
consolidated entity does not hold or issue derivative
financial instruments for trading purposes. However,
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
accounted for as trading instruments.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value and remeasured at each reporting date.As the
derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting, the gain
or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. The fair value of forward
exchange contracts is their quoted market price at the
balance sheet date, being the present value of the quoted
forward price.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

For the period ended 30 June 2005

(f) Investment Property

Investment properties are properties which are held either
to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both. Investment properties are stated at fair value.An
external, independent valuation company, having an
appropriate recognised professional qualification and
recent experience in the location and category of
property being valued, values the portfolio on a rolling
three year basis. The fair values are based on market
values, being the estimated amount for which a property
could be exchanged on the date of valuation between
a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length
transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties
had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without
compulsion.

The valuations are prepared by considering the aggregate
of the net annual rents receivable from the properties and
where relevant, associated costs.A yield which reflects the
specific risks inherent in the net cash flows is then applied
to the net annual rentals to arrive at the property
valuation.A table showing the range of yields applied for
each type of property in the current period is included
below.

Office Yields Retail Yields
4.3% – 6.1% 4.1% – 8.0%

Valuations reflect, where appropriate: the type of tenants
actually in occupation or responsible for meeting lease
commitments or likely to be in occupation after letting
of vacant accommodation and the market’s general
perception of their credit-worthiness; the allocation of
maintenance and insurance responsibilities between lessor
and lessee; and the remaining economic life of the
property. It has been assumed that whenever rent
reviews or lease renewals are pending with anticipated
reversionary increases, all notices and where appropriate
counter notices have been served validly and within the
appropriate time.

Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is
recognised in the income statement.

(g) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call
deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the consolidated entity’s cash
management are included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of
cash flows.

(h) Transaction Costs on Issue of Units in the Trust

Transaction costs arising on the issue of units in the
Trust are recognised directly in unitholders’ funds as a
reduction of the proceeds of units to which the costs
relate.

(i) Revenue

Revenues are recognised at fair value of the consideration
received net of the amount of goods and services tax
(‘GST’) payable to the taxation authority.

(i) Rental income
Rental income from investment property is recognised
in the income statement on a straight line basis over the
term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised
as an integral part of the total rental income.

(ii) Recoverable outgoings
Recovery of outgoings as specified in lease agreements
are accrued on an estimated basis and adjusted when the
actual amounts are invoiced to the respective tenants.

(iii)Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised in the income statement
on the date the entity’s right to receive payment is
established.

(j) Expenses

(i) Net financing costs
Net financing costs comprise interest payable on
borrowings calculated using the effective interest rate
method, interest receivable on funds invested, dividend
income and foreign exchange gains and losses.

Interest income is recognised in the income statement
as it accrues, using the effective interest method.

(ii) Asset management fees
Asset management fees payable to the Responsible Entity
are recognised as an expense as the services are received
and for the performance fee component in accordance

Note 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies continued
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with the Trust Constitution when performance criteria
for the fee is met. Refer to Note 32 for further
information.

(k) Tax

(i) Australian income tax
Under current Australian income tax legislation, the Trust
is not liable to income tax provided unitholders are
presently entitled to all of the Trust’s taxable income at
30 June each year and any taxable gain derived from the
sale of an asset acquired after 19 September 1985 is fully
distributed to unitholders. Tax allowances for building,
plant and equipment depreciation are distributed to
unitholders in the form of tax deferred components
of distributions.

(ii) Japanese withholding tax
Effective as of 1 April 2002, all foreign corporations and
non-resident individuals that do not have permanent
establishments in Japan are subject to 20% withholding
tax on the distribution of profits under TK contracts
regardless of the number of investors in the TK. The
20% withholding tax is the final Japanese tax on such
distributed TK profits and such profits are not subject to
any other Japanese taxes (assuming that such investor is
not a resident of/does not have permanent establishment
in Japan).

The amount of profit that is allocated to TK investors
under a TK agreement is immediately deductible from
the TK operator’s taxable income regardless of whether
a distribution to any TK investor is actually made at that
time. The 20% withholding tax described above, however,
is only imposed on an actual distribution of profit
to investors.

On a six monthly basis, once interest bearing debt service
and required lender reserve payments have been made, the
TK Operator and the nominee of the Trust’s indirect
interest in KDTMK will make cash distributions to
the Trust. For the most part these distributions can be
expected to be of income for Japanese tax purposes, and
thus subject to withholding tax at a rate of either 20%
(if from the TK) or up to 20% (if from KDTMK),
however, the cash available for distribution from the TK
may exceed taxable profit for Japanese tax purposes and
may therefore be made in part free from Japanese
withholding tax as either a return of capital or (if capital
has already been fully returned) as a loan from the TK to
the Trust.

(iii) Deferred income tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for timing
differences at the tax rates expected to apply when assets
are recovered or liabilities are settled based on those rates
which are enacted or substantially enacted in Japan. The
relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts
of deductible and taxable temporary differences to
measure the deferred tax asset or liability.

(l) Distributions

Distributions are paid within three months of each
half year end. The half year ends are 30 June and
31 December.

(m) Goods and Services Tax and Japanese

Consumption Tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the
amount of goods and services tax (GST) or Japanese
consumption tax (‘consumption tax’), except where the
amount of GST or consumption tax incurred is not
recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (‘ATO’)
or Japanese tax authority (‘tax authorities’). In these latter
circumstances the GST or consumption tax is recognised
as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of
an item of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of
GST or consumption tax included. The net amount of
GST or consumption tax recoverable from, or payable to,
the tax authorities is included as a current asset or liability
in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on
a gross basis. The GST or consumption tax components
of cash flows arising from investing and financing
activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the
tax authorities are classified as operating cash flows.

(n) Deferred Tenancy and Leasing Costs
Expenditure on direct leasing and tenancy costs is
capitalised and written off over the lease term in
proportion to the rental revenue recognised in each
financial period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

For the period ended 30 June 2005

(o) Segment Reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
consolidated entity that is engaged either in providing
products or services (business segment), or in providing
products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is subject to
risks and rewards that are different from those of other
segments.

(p) Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are recognised for amounts
to be paid in the future for goods or services received,
whether or not billed to the Trust and are stated at cost.
Trade accounts payable are normally settled within
60 days.

(q) Provisions

A provision is recognised when there is a legal, equitable
or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future sacrifice of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, the timing or
amount of which is uncertain.

If the effect is material, a provision is determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows (adjusted for
expected future risks) required to settle the obligation at
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability, most closely matching the expected future
payments, except where noted below. The unwinding
of the discount is treated as part of the expense related
to the particular provision.

(r) Interest Bearing Borrowings

Interest bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between proceeds
and redemption value being recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings on an
effective interest basis.

(s) Receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at their cost less any
impairment losses.

(t) Tenant Deposits

Tenant deposits held are recognised as part of cash and
cash equivalents with a corresponding liability for the
obligation to return the deposit to tenants.

(u) Earnings Per Unit

Basic earnings per unit is determined by dividing net
profit attributable to the Trust by the weighted average
number of units on issue during the period.

Diluted earnings per unit is determined by dividing net
profit attributable to the Trust by the weighted average
number of ordinary units and dilutive potential ordinary
units on issue during the period.

Note 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies continued
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Consolidated Trust
31/01/05 31/01/05

to 30/06/05 to 30/06/05
$’000 $’000

Note 2 Other Operating Income

Distribution from TK – related party – 4,337

Realised foreign exchange gain 2,125 2,125

2,125 6,462

Note 3 Other Operating Expenses

Accounting fees 42 –

Audit fees 185 101

Custody fees – paid to related party 20 20

Professional fees 190 37

Registrar costs 29 29

Interest rate swap cancellation fee 1,269 –

Note 4 Net Financing Costs

Financial income

Interest income 145 145

Interest compensation – related party 154 154

Net interest income on cross currency swap 796 796

1,095 1,095

Financial expenses

Interest on borrowings 842 –

Note 5 Income Tax Expense

(a) Income tax expense

Current Japanese withholding tax 1,111 1,111

Deferred Japanese withholding tax 176 176

1,287 1,287

(b) Reconciliation of withholding tax expense

Profit for the period 5,443 3,548

Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% 1,633 1,064

Tax effect of amounts that are not assessable (1,633) (1,064)

Japanese withholding tax on distributions from Japanese investments 1,111 1,111

Deferred Japanese withholding tax on difference between the original 
Japanese tax cost base and written down value of investment properties 176 176

Japanese withholding tax expense 1,287 1,287
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

For the period ended 30 June 2005

Consolidated Trust
31/01/05 31/01/05

to 30/06/05 to 30/06/05
$ $

Note 6 Auditor’s Remuneration

Audit services:

Auditors of the Group

PricewaterhouseCoopers Australia:

Audit and review of financial reports 101,410 101,410

PricewaterhouseCoopers Japan:

Audit and review of financial reports 84,021 –

185,431 101,410

Other services:

Auditors of the Trust

PricewaterhouseCoopers related practices:

Capital raising related services(1) 1,072,770 830,250

Taxation services 24,214 15,212

1,096,984 845,462

NOTE:
(1) Babcock & Brown Australia Pty Limited was the transaction facilitator in respect of the Trust’s initial public offering and paid fees to PricewaterhouseCoopers in

relation to capital raising related services in respect of the initial public offering.

Note 7 Earnings Per Unit

Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary unit 2.36¢

Adjusted basic and diluted earnings per ordinary unit 1.47¢

Profit attributable to unitholders used in calculating basic and diluted earnings 
per share ($’000) 4,112

Weighted average number of units used as denominator in calculating basic and 
diluted earnings per unit 174,359,816

The weighted average number of units used as denominator in calculating basic 
and diluted earnings per unit shown above is based on the number of units on 
issue from 31 January 2005 to period end.

Weighted average number of units used as denominator in calculating adjusted basic 
and diluted earnings per unit 280,088,640

The weighted average number of units used as denominator in calculating adjusted basic and diluted earnings per
unit shown above is based on the number of units on issue from the date of allotment of shares under the IPO to
period end.
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Consolidated Trust
30/06/05 30/06/05

$’000 $’000

Note 8 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash 5,923 1,093

Deposits at call 2,339 2,339

Cash in trust 25,705 –

Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of cash flows 33,967 3,432

Note 9 Trade and Other Receivables

Current

Rent receivable 812 –

Consumption tax and GST receivable 7,258 989

Distribution receivable – related party – 7,615

Other receivables 169 153

8,239 8,757

Note 10 Derivative Financial Instruments

Current

Net interest receivable on cross currency swaps 796 796

Cross currency swaps at fair value 677 677

1,473 1,473

Non-current

Cross currency swaps at fair value 4,275 4,275

Note 11 Other Assets

Current

Prepayments 192 –

Non-current

Prepayments 246 –

Note 12 Other Financial Assets

Non-current

Investments in associates – 47,046

Investment in TK – 218,866

Other investments 119 –

119 265,912
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

For the period ended 30 June 2005

Consolidated
30/06/05

$’000

Note 13 Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method

(a) Carrying amounts

Name of company Principal activity %

Kawasaki Dice Tokutei Mokuteki Kaisha (‘KDTMK’) Property investment 30 46,853

The consolidated entity has a 30% interest in KDTMK, which owns 87.07% of the Kawasaki Dice property. KDTMK
is located in Japan and has a 31 March reporting date.Adjustments have been made at 30 June to reflect any material
transactions or events occurring between 31 March and 30 June.

(b) Movements in carrying amounts

Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial period –

Purchase of investment in associate 48,260

Dividends received (1,214)

Share of profit of associate 900

Effect of changes in exchange rates (1,093)

46,853

(c) Share of associate’s profits

Property income 2,224

Property expenses (1,000)

Financing expenses (287)

Other expenses (37)

Share of associate’s net profit recognised 900

(d) Summarised financial position of associates

Current assets 8,444

Non-current investment properties 94,236

Other non-current assets 1,032

Total assets 103,712

Current liabilities 1,285

Non-current interest bearing debt 51,379

Other non-current liabilities 4,195

Total liabilities 56,859

Share of net assets as reported by associates 46,853

(e) Commitments and contingent liabilities

There were no commitments or contingencies relating to the associate at balance date.
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Consolidated Trust
30/06/05 30/06/05

$’000 $’000

Note 14 Investment Properties

Investment properties at fair value 466,092 –

(a) Reconciliation

Reconciliation of the carrying amount of investment properties is set out below:

Carrying amount at the beginning of the period – –

Acquisitions 469,363 –

Acquisition cost capitalised 3,082 –

Foreign currency translation differences (6,353)

Carrying amount at the end of the period 466,092 –

(b) Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment property

Property income 9,505 –

Property expenses (1,267) –

8,238 –

(c) Valuation basis

The basis of valuation of investment properties is fair value being amounts for which the properties could be
exchanged between willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, based on current prices in an active market for
similar properties in the same location and condition and subject to similar leases. The directors’ assessment of fair value
was based upon independent assessments made by a Japanese Licensed Real Estate Appraiser.

The investment properties are leased to tenants under two main types of leases in Japan, Standard Leases and Fixed
Term Leases. Standard Leases are usually for two years with the tenant right of renewal and contractually agreed
cancellation notice period by the tenant is usually six months. Fixed Term Leases are non-cancellable and lease terms
vary between tenants. Subsequent renewals are negotiated with the lessee. Property interests held under operating leases
are classified as investment properties. No contingent rents are charged.

(d) Assets pledged as security

Refer to Note 19 for information on assets pledged as security.

(e) Beneficial interest

The Trust holds interests in the investment properties arising from the contractual relationship between the Trust and
the TK Operator. The beneficial legal ownership of the investment properties is held in the name of the TK Operator.
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For the period ended 30 June 2005

Consolidated Trust
30/06/05 30/06/05

$’000 $’000

Note 15 Payables

Current

Rent paid in advance 2,263 –

Interest payable 781 –

Fees payable to related parties 6,072 6,028

Other payables 3,290 175

12,406 6,203

Non-current

Fees payable to related parties 3,494 3,494

Other payables 554 –

4,048 3,494

Note 16 Tenant Deposits

Current

Tenant deposits 25,652 –

Non-current

Tenant deposits 4,754 –

Note 17 Distributions Payable

30 June 2005 distribution 6,302 6,302

Note 18 Current Tax Liabilities

Japanese withholding tax 867 867
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Consolidated Trust
30/06/05 30/06/05

$’000 $’000

Note 19 Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings

Non-current

Secured bank loans 245,005 –

Bank loans are denominated in Yen and are interest only loans with principal repayable on maturity. The term of the
loan is five years, maturing on 29 March 2010. 90% of the loan is fixed at a rate of 1.30% per annum, with the
remaining 10% floating debt with a rate of 0.69% per annum.

(a) Assets pledged as security

The bank loans are secured by pledge over the investment properties.

The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for non-current interest bearing debt are:

Investment properties at fair value 466,092 –

(b) Financing facilities

The consolidated entity has access to the following lines of credit:

Secured bank loans 245,005 –

Secured bank loan facility 22,582 –

Total facilities available 267,587 –

Facilities utilised at reporting date 245,005 –

Facilities not utilised at reporting date 22,582 –

Note 20 Deferred Tax Liabilities

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Investment properties 176 176
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Consolidated Trust
30/06/05 30/06/05

$’000 $’000

Note 21 Contributed Equity

280,088,640 units on issue 266,570 266,807

Movements in contributed equity

Balance at beginning of financial period – –

Units issued 280,089 280,089

Less: transaction costs (9,478) (9,241)

Transfer to undistributed operating surplus (4,041) (4,041)

Balance at end of financial period 266,570 266,807

On 4 April 2005, 280,088,640 ordinary units were issued by the Trust at $1.00. Under the terms of the Trust’s
Constitution units are classified as equity. Issue costs of $9,478,281 were recognised as a reduction of the proceeds of
the issue. These units were issued pursuant to a product disclosure statement dated 21 February 2005. These funds were
utilised to purchase the 12 Japanese properties, payment of issue costs, and to provide additional working capital.

In accordance with the Trust Constitution each ordinary unitholder is entitled to receive distributions as declared
from time to time and is entitled to one vote at unitholder meetings. In accordance with the Trust Constitution,
each unit represents a right to an individual share in the Trust and does not extend to a right to the underlying assets
of the Trust.

There are no restricted units on issue at the date of the Directors’ Report nor during the period.

Note 22 Reserves
Foreign currency translation reserve

Balance at beginning of financial period – –

Currency translation differences arising during the period (5,082) –

Share of associate’s currency translation differences arising during the period (1,093) –

Balance at the end of the financial period (6,175) –

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the transaction of the interests in foreign
operations, where their functional currency is different to the presentation currency of the reporting entity.
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Consolidated Trust
30/06/05 30/06/05

$’000 $’000

Note 23 Net Tangible Assets

Total tangible assets 556,505

Less total tangible liabilities (299,034)

Net tangible assets attributable to the Trust 257,471

Total number of units on issue 280,088,640

Net tangible asset backing per unit $0.92

Add: fair market value of cross currency swaps $0.02

Adjusted net tangible asset backing per unit $0.94

Note 24 Undistributed Income

Undistributed income at the beginning of the financial period – –

Net profit attributable to unitholders 4,112 2,261

Distributions payable (6,302) (6,302)

Transfer from contributed equity 4,041 4,041

Undistributed income at the end of the financial period 1,851 –

Note 25 Minority Interests

Balance at the beginning of the financial period – –

Net profit attributable to minority interest 44 –

Distributions payable (44) –

Balance at the end of the financial period – –
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

For the period ended 30 June 2005

Note 26 Financial Instruments
Exposure to credit, interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal course of the consolidated entity’s business.
Derivative financial instruments are used to hedge exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and interest rates.

Interest rate risk

The Trust is exposed to changes in interest rates. The Japanese Investments have entered into predominantly fixed rate
funding to mitigate exposure to increasing interest rates.

Fixed
Weighted Floating Interest Non-

Average Interest Over 1 to Interest
2005 Interest Rate 5 Years Bearing Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5.43% 2,462 – 31,505 33,967

Receivables – – – 8,239 8,239

Other financial assets – – – 119 119

2,462 – 39,863 42,325

Financial liabilities

Payables – – – 16,454 16,454

Tenant deposits 2.00% – 553 29,853 30,406

Distribution payable – – – 6,302 6,302

Interest bearing debt 1.24% 24,504 220,501 – 245,005

24,504 221,054 52,609 298,167

Foreign currency risk

(a) Distribution hedges
The consolidated entity is exposed to foreign currency risk on revenue, expenses and borrowings that are denominated
in Japanese Yen.

The consolidated entity adopts a policy of arranging foreign exchange hedges on a rolling basis equivalent to:

• 100% of the Trust’s estimated distributions for the next three years; and
• 90% of the Trust’s estimated distributions for years four and five.

At balance date the details of outstanding balances are:

Buy Australian Dollars Trust Sells Average
Japanese Exchange

Maturity Yen ‘000 Rate

Less than one year 1,381,895 79.3

One – five years 6,403,610 70.2

These distribution hedging arrangements are not deemed to be effective hedges for accounting purposes.
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(b) Capital hedges
With respect to the equity capital of the Trust, the policy is to arrange foreign exchange hedges equivalent to between
10%-30% of its net investment in Japanese assets, over periods of between four and six years.

At balance date the Trust had foreign exchange hedges of A$60 million with staggered settlement dates, half settling
August 2009 and half settling in August 2011. Interest is paid at six monthly intervals.

Buy Australian Dollars Trust Sells Average Australian Japanese
Japanese Exchange Interest Interest

Maturity Yen ‘000 Rate Rate Rate

One – five years 2,487,240 82.91 6.10% 0.625%

Greater than five years 2,487,240 82.91 6.13% 0.980%

These capital hedging arrangements are not deemed to be effective hedges for accounting purposes.

Credit risk exposures

Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties failed to perform as contracted.

The credit risk on financial assets of the Trust which have been recognised on the balance sheet is the carrying
amount, net of any provision for doubtful debts relating to rental debtors. The Trust has a credit policy for all tenants
and has obtained a guarantee from the tenant’s holding company to guarantee the obligation of the tenant under the
lease and to indemnify the lessor against all loss, damage or costs caused by the tenant, to reduce credit risk.
Furthermore rents are payable monthly in advance.

At balance date 88% of receivables were due from Australian and Japanese tax authorities in respect of GST and
consumption tax.At balance date there were no other significant concentrations of credit risk.

Net fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Net fair values
The Trust’s financial assets and liabilities included in current and non-current assets and liabilities on the statement
of financial position are carried at amounts that approximate net fair value.

Valuation approach
The net fair value of financial assets and liabilities are determined by the Trust on the following bases:

Monetary financial assets and financial liabilities not readily traded in an organised financial market are valued at the
present value of contractual future cash flows on amounts due from customers (reduced for expected credit losses) or
due to suppliers. Cash flows are discounted using standard valuation techniques at the applicable market yield having
regard to the timing of the cash flows. The carrying amounts of bank deposits, receivables, other debtors, accounts
payable, bank loans and distributions payable approximate net fair value.

Forward exchange contracts are either marketed to market using listed market prices or by discounting the contractual
forward price and deducting the current spot rate.Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future
cash flows are based on management’s best estimates and the discount rate is a market related rate for a similar
instrument at balance date.Where other pricing models are used, inputs are based on market related data at the balance
sheet date.
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Note 27 Commitments
(a) Leasing arrangements

The investment properties are leased to tenants under two main types of leases in Japan, Standard Leases and Fixed
Term Leases. Standard Leases are usually for two years. The tenant has the right of renewal on the lease and the
contractually agreed cancellation notice period by the tenant is usually six months.

The minimum lease payments receivable on non-cancellable Fixed Term Leases of investment properties not recognised
in the financial statements as receivables are as follows:

Consolidated Trust
30/06/05 30/06/05

$’000 $’000

Within one year 8,254 –

Later than one year but not later than five years 33,017 –

Later than five years 49,467 –

90,738 –

Note 28 Contingencies
In the opinion of the directors of the Responsible Entity there were no contingent assets or liabilities at balance date.

Note 29 Consolidated Entities
Country of Ownership

Incorporation Interest

Parent entity

Babcock & Brown Japan Property Trust Australia –

Significant investments

Tokumei Kumiai (‘TK’) established under the Tokumei Kumiai Agreement dated 
24 March 2005 with JPT Co., Ltd. Japan 100%

The Trust is a party to the Tokumei Kumiai Agreement with the TK Operator, JPT Co., Ltd., pursuant to which, in
exchange for the Trust’s contribution of all the equity required for the TK Business, the Trust is entitled to 100% of
the investor capital account of the TK and 99% of the profits and losses of the TK Business.
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Note 30 Segment Reporting
The Group’s primary reporting format is business segments, retail and office property and corporate and the secondary
format is geographical.

Business segments

The following table presents revenue and profit information and certain assets and liability information regarding
business segments for the period ended 30 June 2005.

Total
2005 Retail Office Corporate Operations

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Revenue

Property rental income 2,734 6,771 – 9,505

Property expense (119) (1,148) – (1,267)

Total net property income 2,615 5,623 – 8,238

Share of net profits of associates 900 – – 900

Other revenue – – 7,076 7,076

Total segment revenue 3,515 5,623 7,076 16,214

Results

Segment result 3,515 5,623 (3,695) 5,443

Profit before income tax and minority interest 3,515 5,623 (3,695) 5,443

Income tax expense (601) (686) – (1,287)

Net profit for the period 2,914 4,937 (3,695) 4,156

Assets and liabilities

Investment properties 172,924 293,168 – 466,092

Investments in associates 46,853 – – 46,853

Other segment assets 7,143 19,691 21,677 48,511

Total segment assets 226,920 312,859 21,677 561,456

Interest bearing liabilities – – 245,005 245,005

Other segment liabilities 14,551 22,104 17,550 54,205

Total segment liabilities 14,551 22,104 262,555 299,210
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Geographical segments

The following table presents revenue and profit information and certain assets and liability information regarding
geographical segments for the period ended 30 June 2005.

Total
2005 Japan Australia Eliminations Operations

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Revenue

Property rental income 9,505 – – 9,505

Property expense (1,267) – – (1,267)

Total net property income 8,238 – – 8,238

Share of net profits of associates 900 – – 900

Other revenue – 11,413 (4,337) 7,076

Total segment revenue 9,138 11,413 (4,337) 16,214

Results

Segment result 1,896 3,547 – 5,443

Profit before income tax and minority interest 1,896 3,547 – 5,443

Income tax expense (1,287) – – (1,287)

Net profit for the period 609 3,547 – 4,156

Assets and liabilities

Investment properties 466,092 – – 466,092

Investments in associates 46,853 – – 46,853

Other segment assets 38,188 236,804 (226,481) 48,511

Total segment assets 551,133 236,804 (226,481) 561,456

Interest bearing liabilities 245,005 – – 245,005

Other segment liabilities 45,821 15,999 (7,615) 54,205

Total segment liabilities 290,826 15,999 (7,615) 299,210

Note 30 Segment Reporting continued
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Consolidated Trust
31/01/05 31/01/05

to 30/06/05 to 30/06/05
$’000 $’000

Note 31 Notes to the Statements of Cash Flows

Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the period 4,112 2,261

Adjustments for non-cash items

Realised foreign exchange gain (2,125) (2,125)

Unrealised fair value of derivatives (4,951) (4,951)

Equity accounting for investment in associates (900) –

Net cash provided by operating activities before changes in assets and liabilities (3,864) (4,815)

Change in assets and liabilities during the financial period

Increase in Japanese withholding tax payable 1,052 1,043

Increase in trade and other receivables (8,423) (5,481)

Increase in derivative financial instruments (796) (796)

Increase in other assets (439) –

Increase in payables 12,933 9,697

Increase in tenant deposits 207 –

Net cash from operating activities 670 (352)

Note 32 Related Parties
(a) Responsible Entity

The responsible entity of Babcock & Brown Japan Property Trust is Babcock & Brown Japan Property Management
Limited (ACN 111 874 563) (‘the Responsible Entity’) whose immediate and ultimate holding company is Babcock
& Brown Australia Pty Limited (ABN 49 002 348 521) and Babcock & Brown Limited (ABN 53 108 614 955)
respectively.

(b) Directors of Responsible Entity

The names of each person holding the position of director of the Responsible Entity during the financial period
were Mr F A McDonald, Mr E Lucas, Mr P Green, Ms P Dwyer, Mr J Pettigrew, Mr D Ross and Mr M Maxwell.
Mr M Maxwell and Mr D Ross retired as directors on 31 January 2005 and 19 February 2005 respectively.
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(c) Responsible Entity’s holdings of units

Babcock & Brown Japan Property Management Limited holds 13,570,014 units (4.84%) directly in Babcock & Brown
Japan Property Trust.

The relevant interests of each director of Babcock & Brown Japan Property Management Limited in the unit capital of
the Trust at the date of this report are set out below:

Number of units

Allan McDonald Ordinary units 200,000

Eric Lucas Ordinary units 4,000,000

Phil Green Ordinary units 1,000,000

Paula Dwyer Ordinary units 500,000

John Pettigrew Ordinary units 100,000

(d) Responsible Entity’s remuneration

In accordance with the Trust Constitution, Babcock & Brown Japan Property Management Limited is entitled to
receive:

Asset Management Fee
The Asset Management Fee is made up of:

• A Base Fee component which is based on an Asset Base Fee paid to the Japan Manager and a Trust Base Fee paid
to the Responsible Entity.

• A Performance Fee component which is based on a performance fee in relation to the returns of the Japanese
Investments (Asset Performance Fee) and a performance fee in relation to the returns of the Trust (Trust
Performance Fee).

The Asset Management Fee is subject to a payment cap where the Asset Management Fee (being the aggregate of the
Base Fee and the Performance Fee) paid in any one year must not exceed 1% of the value of the Trust’s direct and
indirect proportionate interest in properties and other assets at the end of the year.

Any excess will be carried forward into future years and will be payable to the extent to which the Asset Management
Fee payable in any year is less than the 1% cap.Any excess which has been carried forward for at least three years is
then payable and this payment of outstanding fees will not be capped.Accordingly, it is possible that the payment of the
Asset Management Fee within a year could exceed 1.0% of the Trust’s assets, particularly after periods where there has
been three years of cumulative outperformance.

Base Fee
• Asset Base Fee equal to 0.40% per annum of the gross market values of the properties calculated on the half year

values of the properties and other assets subject to the TK Asset Management Agreement, and payable quarterly in
arrears.

• Trust Base Fee of 0.50% (limited to 0.45% per annum until 30 June 2007) per annum of the Trust’s direct or
indirect proportionate interest in properties and other assets. The fee is based on half year values and payable in
arrears. For so long as the Responsible Entity is a related entity of Babcock & Brown Limited, the Trust base fee
is reduced by the asset base fee paid to the asset manager which is a related body corporate of Babcock & Brown
Limited and the TK Operator’s share of profits of the TK.

Note 32 Related Parties continued
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Performance Fee
• Asset Performance Fee is calculated in two tiers as follows:

(i) Tier 1 – 5% of the amount (denominated in Japanese Yen) equivalent to the amount the performance of the
Japanese Investments exceeds the Asset Benchmark up to 1% outperformance; and

(ii) Tier 2 – 15% of the amount (denominated in Japanese Yen) equivalent to the amount the performance of the
Japanese Investments exceeds the Asset Benchmark in excess of 1% outperformance.

• Trust Performance Fee is calculated in two tiers as follows:
(i) Tier 1 – 5% of outperformance (up to 2%) multiplied by total equity of the Trust; and
(ii) Tier 2 – 15% of outperformance greater than 2% multiplied by total equity of the Trust.

Reimbursement of expenses
The Responsible Entity is entitled to reimbursement of Trust expenses incurred by the Responsible Entity on behalf
of the Trust.

The fees paid or payable to the Responsible Entity during the financial year are set out below.

(e) Transactions with related parties
Consolidated Trust

31/01/05 31/01/05
to 30/06/05 to 30/06/05

$’000 $’000

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

Asset management fees

Trust base fee – payable to Responsible Entity 149 149

Asset base fee – payable to Japan Asset Manager 526 –

TK minority interest – payable to TK Operator 44 –

Total base fees 719 149

Asset performance fee – payable to Japan Manager(1) – –

Trust performance fee – payable to Responsible Entity 8,611 8,611

Total performance fees 8,611 8,611

Total Asset Management Fees paid or payable to the Responsible Entity 
and related parties 9,330 8,760

Custody fees 20 20

Distributions receivable from TK – 7,615

Distributions received from associate KDTMK 1,214 1,214

Transaction facilitator fee paid 1,825 1,825

Interest compensation revenue 154 154

NOTE:
(1) Under the Asset Management Agreement no Asset Performance Fee is due for the period to 30 June 2005.
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(f) Transactions with related parties

The properties in which the Trust has an interest through the TK and KDTMK were acquired from entities which
are/were managed by the Babcock & Brown group or to which the Babcock & Brown group provides/provided
investment management services and the ultimate investors which include/included the Babcock & Brown group or
parties related to it and its clients.All transactions were on an arm’s length basis and purchase prices were determined
using independent valuations.

Consolidated Trust
31/01/05 31/01/05

to 30/06/05 to 30/06/05
$’000 $’000

The entities from which interests were acquired and the purchase prices paid 
are outlined below:

TTK Co., Ltd. 124,084 –

Evol Co., Ltd. 231,567 –

KF Motomachi Co., Ltd. 25,540 –

Poseidon Satellite Asset Co., Ltd. 44,080 –

BB YK One Co., Ltd. 26,624 –

Forest North Company Limited 17,468 –

KD Holdings Pty Limited (as nominee) 48,260 –

(g) Outstanding balances
Consolidated Trust

30/06/05 30/06/05
$’000 $’000

The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to transactions 
with related parties:

Asset management fees

Trust base fee – payable to Responsible Entity 162 162

Asset base fee – payable to Japan Manager 547 –

TK minority interest – payable to TK Operator 44 –

Total base fees 753 162

Trust performance fee – payable to Responsible Entity 9,340 9,340

Total performance fees 9,340 9,340

Custody fees 22 22

Distributions receivable from TK – 7,615

Interest compensation receivable 154 154

Note 32 Related Parties continued
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Note 33 Directors’ and Executives’ disclosures
(a) Directors

The directors of the Responsible Entity are set out in Note 32.

(b) Executives

There were no specified executives of the Trust during the period as neither the Trust nor the Responsible Entity had
employees, other than the three independent directors, during the period.

(c) Remuneration of directors

(i) Executive Directors
The Executive Directors of the Responsible Entity are employed by the Babcock & Brown group (‘Babcock &
Brown’). The Remuneration Committee of Babcock & Brown is responsible for ensuring that the Executive Directors
are remunerated fairly and for overseeing remuneration and human resources policies and practices of the Babcock &
Brown group. The Babcock & Brown Remuneration Committee consists of at least three directors, a majority of
which must be independent Non-Executive Directors.

Babcock & Brown remuneration practices have been structured to be competitive and to ensure that Babcock &
Brown can attract and retain the talent needed to achieve both short and long term success, while maintaining a strong
focus on teamwork, individual performance and the interest of Babcock & Brown shareholders. Babcock & Brown
total remuneration is delivered through base salary, an annual performance bonus and, for executives, through the
equity incentive plan. The Babcock & Brown group and individual performance will be the key drivers of total
remuneration. Consequently, for more senior executives, base salary will continue to be positioned to provide a small
proportion of their total remuneration opportunity. The combination of annual performance bonus and equity
incentives will deliver the majority of Babcock & Brown executives’ potential total remuneration opportunity.

(ii) Independent Directors
Non-Executive Directors are employees of the Responsible Entity and are paid an annual fee for their services on
the Board and Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee of the Board. The total remuneration paid to Non-Executive
Directors during the period is set out in the remuneration table below. The amount paid to Non-Executive Directors
is reviewed from time to time and approved by the Board. Non-Executive Directors are not provided with retirement
benefits other than statutory superannuation and do not receive options or bonus payments.
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(iii)Remuneration of directors
Bonus(1)

Relating to Non-
Salary Current Monetary Super-

Director and Fees Period Benefits annuation Options Total

A McDonald(3) 39,417 – – 3,548 – 42,965

E Lucas(2) 143,177 – 2,904 – 34,429 180,510

P Green(2) 150,000 – – 4,827 110,174 265,001

P Dwyer(3) 25,083 – – 2,258 – 27,341

J Pettigrew(3) 25,083 – – 2,258 – 27,341

D Ross(4) – – – – – –

M Maxwell(4) – – – – – –

Total remuneration 382,760 – 2,904 12,891 144,603 543,158

NOTES:
(1) Bonuses paid to Executive Directors are determined by the Babcock & Brown group on a calendar year basis. It is not possible to determine the amount of bonus

relating to the period to 30 June 2005 until the end of the 2005 calendar year.
(2) Remuneration paid to Executive Directors E Lucas and P Green is not paid by the Trust. The remuneration is 100% of the remuneration paid to them by Babcock

& Brown. Options granted relate to Babcock & Brown Limited. This remuneration is paid to the Executive Directors in respect of their wider responsibilities
relating to the Babcock & Brown group, of which the executive directorship of the Responsible Entity is a part. It is not practicable or meaningful to apportion the
remuneration to the time spent directly on the executive directorship of the Responsible Entity.

(3) The Independent Directors commenced employment on 19 February 2005.
(4) Mr Maxwell and Mr Ross retired as directors on 31/01/05 and 19/02/05 respectively.

(d) Options and loans

There were no loans or Babcock & Brown Japan Property Trust options granted as part of directors’ remuneration in
respect to their position as director of the Responsible Entity.

(e) Other transactions with the Trust

The terms and conditions of the transactions with directors and their director related entities were no more favourable
than those available, or which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar transactions to non-director
related entities on an arm’s length basis.

Note 34 Events Subsequent to Balance Date
There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial period and the date of this report any item,
transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors of the Trust, to affect
significantly the operations of the Trust, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Trust, in future
financial years.

Note 35 Economic Dependency
The Trust is not significantly dependent on any specific entity for its revenue or financial requirements.

Note 33 Directors’ and Executives’ disclosures continued
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Directors’ Declaration

1. In the opinion of the directors of Babcock & Brown Japan Property Management Limited, the Responsible Entity
of Babcock & Brown Japan Property Trust:

(a) the financial statements and notes, set out on pages 68 to 96, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Trust as at 30 June 2005 and of its performance,
as represented by the results of its operations and its cash flows, for the period from 31 January 2005 to
30 June 2005; and

(ii) complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Trust will be able to pay its debts as and when they become
due and payable.

2. The Trust has operated during the period from 31 January 2005 to 30 June 2005 in accordance with the provisions
of the Trust Constitution dated 31 January 2005.

3. The Register of Unitholders has, during the period ended 30 June 2005, been properly drawn up and maintained
so as to give a true account of the unitholders of the Trust.

4. The directors of the Responsible Entity have been given the declarations by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer for the financial period ended 30 June 2005 pursuant to section 295A of the Corporations Act
2001.

Dated at Sydney this 24th day of August 2005.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

F A MCDONALD
Chairman
Babcock & Brown Japan Property Management Limited
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Independent audit report to the members of
Babcock & Brown Capital Limited

Audit Opinion

In our opinion, the financial report of Babcock & Brown Japan Property Trust:
• gives a true and fair view, as required by the Corporations Act 2001 in Australia, of the financial position

of Babcock & Brown Japan Property Trust and the Babcock & Brown Japan Property Trust Group
(defined below) as at 30 June 2005, and of their performance for the period ended on that date, and

• is presented in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,Accounting Standards and other mandatory
financial reporting requirements in Australia, and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

This opinion must be read in conjunction with the rest of our audit report.

Scope

The financial report and directors’ responsibility
The financial report comprises the balance sheet, income statement, cash flow statements, statement of
changes in equity, accompanying notes to the financial statements, and the directors’ declaration for both
Babcock & Brown Japan Property Trust (the registered scheme) and the Babcock & Brown Japan Property
Trust Group (the consolidated entity), for the period ended 30 June 2005.The consolidated entity comprises
both the registered scheme and the entities it controlled during that period.

The directors of the registered scheme are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of
the financial report in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001.This includes responsibility for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect
fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial report.

Audit approach
We conducted an independent audit in order to express an opinion to the unitholders of the registered
scheme. Our audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, in order to provide
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of material misstatement.The nature of an audit
is influenced by factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent limitations of
internal control, and the availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence.Therefore, an audit cannot
guarantee that all material misstatements have been detected. For further explanation of an audit, visit our
website http://www.pwc.com/au/financialstatementaudit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

ABN 52 780 433 757

Darling Park Tower 2

201 Sussex Street

GPO Box 2650

SYDNEY NSW 1171

DX 77 Sydney

Australia

www.pwc.com/au

Telephone +61 2 8266 0000

Facsimile +61 2 8266 9999

Liability is limited by the Accountant’s Scheme under the Professional Standards Act 1994 (NSW)
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We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly, in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,Accounting Standards and other mandatory financial reporting
requirements in Australia, a view which is consistent with our understanding of the registered scheme’s and
the consolidated entity’s financial position, and of their performance as represented by the results of their
operations and cash flows.

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:

• examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report, and

• assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the directors.

Our procedures include reading the other information in the Annual Report to determine whether it
contains any material inconsistencies with the financial report.

While we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal controls over financial reporting when
determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide assurance on
internal controls.

Our audit did not involve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by directors or management.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian professional ethical
pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

JA Dunning Sydney
Partner 24 August 2005
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ASX Additional Information

Additional information required by the Australian Stock Exchange Limited Listing Rules and not disclosed elsewhere
in this report is as follows. The information is current as at 31 August 2005.

Substantial Unitholders
The names of substantial unitholders who have notified the Trust in accordance with section 671B of the Corporations
Act 2001 are:

Unitholder Ordinary Voting %

ING Australia Holdings Limited 19,493,000 6.96%

Babcock & Brown Group 19,370,014 6.92%

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited 19,141,500 6.83%

Distribution of Units
The number of unitholders of the Trust, by size of holding, in each class of unit is:

Ordinary Units
Number of Number of

Category Holders Units Voting %

1-1,000 143 104,971 0.04%

1,001-5,000 637 2,175,223 0.78%

5,001-10,000 388 3,406,203 1.22%

10,001-100,000 612 19,638,167 7.01%

100,001 and over 88 254,764,076 90.96%

Total 1,868 280,088,640 100.00%

The number of unitholders holding less than a marketable parcel was five.

Voting Rights
At meetings of the unitholders of the Trust, on a show of hands, each unitholder has one vote. On a poll, each
unitholder has one vote for each dollar of value of the total interests that they have in the Trust (determined by
reference to the closing price on the trading day immediately before the day on which the poll is taken).

On-Market Buy-Back
The Trust has no on-market buy-back currently in place.

Number and Class of Securities that are Restricted or Subject to Voluntary Escrow
There are no ordinary units in the Trust which are subject to voluntary escrow.
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Twenty Largest Unitholders
The names of the 20 largest holders of quoted units of the Trust are:

No. of Ordinary Percentage of
Holder Units Held Capital Held %

1 ANZ Nominees Limited <Cash Income A/C> 55,317,946 19.75%

2 National Nominees Limited 34,741,172 12.40%

3 J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 32,745,141 11.69%

4 Westpac Custodian Nominees Limited 18,380,594 6.56%

5 HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited – GSI ECSA 15,059,107 5.38%

6 Babcock & Brown Japan Property Management Limited 13,570,014 4.84%

7 BT (Queensland) Pty Limited 7,591,500 2.71%

8 Suncorp Custodian Services Pty Limited 6,482,300 2.31%

9 Citcorp Nominees Pty Limited 6,318,331 2.26%

10 Queensland Investment Corporation 6,041,921 2.16%

11 UBS Private Clients Australia Nominees Pty Ltd 4,834,530 1.73%

12 Orpheo Pty Ltd <Eric Lucas Trust A/C> 4,000,000 1.43%

13 L J K Nominees Pty Limited <J D Ross Family A/C> 4,000,000 1.43%

14 Westpac Financial Services Limited 3,956,720 1.41%

15 Tricom Nominees Pty Ltd <LPG A/C> 3,242,626 1.16%

16 Acomita Investment Ltd 3,000,000 1.07%

17 Barana Capital Pty Limited <Shand Family A/C> 2,600,000 0.93%

18 RBC Global Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited
<BKCUST A/C> 2,381,252 0.85%

19 GIO General Ltd 1,911,000 0.68%

20 Cogent Nominees Pty Limited <SMP accounts> 1,768,203 0.63%

Total 227,942,357 81.38%
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Glossary

The following is a glossary of the terms used in this annual report.

Term Definition

Babcock & Brown Japan The Trust constituted under the Constitution known as the Babcock & Brown
Property Trust Japan Property Trust

Common Area Fees charged by the landlord for general building maintenance and utilities during 
Maintenance or CAM normal business hours

Constitution The Constitution dated 31 January 2005 of the Babcock & Brown Japan Property Trust,
as amended

Fixed Term Leases Leases created under a 2000 amendment to the Land and Housing Lease Law of Japan
which, unlike Standard Leases, do not give tenants the right to unilaterally renew. Such
leases are often, but not always, non-cancellable

Gearing Ratio Ratio of interest bearing debt to book value of interest in property

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

Japanese Investments The JPT TK and the investment via the Nominee Agreement in KDTMK

Japan Manager Babcock & Brown Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of Babcock & Brown)

JPT TK The TK arrangement between the Trust and the TK Operator pursuant to which the
Trust has contributed equity capital in exchange for a beneficial interest in 11 properties

JPT TK Business The business of the JPT TK, being to obtain profits from purchasing, holding and selling
the Properties held by the TK Operator

KD Holdings KD Holdings Co., Ltd. (a Cayman Islands company)

KDTMK The Japanese special purpose company (Tokutei Mokuteki Kaisha) known as Kawasaki
Dice Tokutei Mokuteki Kaisha which owns the benefical interest in the Kawasaki Dice
property

Listing Rules The official Listing Rules of the Australian Stock Exchange

Nominee Agreement The agreement between KD Holdings and the Responsible Entity through which the
Trust’s interest in KDTMK is held by KD Holdings as nominee

NRA Net rentable area

Passing Rent The rent amount negotiated between the existing tenants and the landlord

PDS or Product The product disclosure document for the Babcock & Brown Japan Property Trust dated
Disclosure Document 21 February 2005
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Term Definition

Responsible Entity Babcock & Brown Japan Property Management Limited (ABN 94 111 874 563)

sqm Square metres

Standard Leases Leases other than Fixed Leases, being leases established under long-standing Japanese
laws (including the Land and Housing Lease Law) and business practices, with terms
usually for two years and a tenant right of renewal on expiration, in effect in perpetuity,
and a right to terminate during the term. The termination notice period is usually
six months

TK or Tokumei Kumiai A contractual relationship or a series of contractual relationships between one or more
investors and a TK operator under Article 535 of the Commercial Code of Japan. In the
specific context of the Properties and the Trust’s own investments, the expression ‘TK’
refers to the JPT TK

TK Operator The operator of the JPT TK, JPT Co., Ltd., a Japanese company

Tokutei Mokuteki Kaisha A special purpose company established under the Asset Liquidation Law of Japan
or TMK

Trust Babcock & Brown Japan Property Trust (ARSN 112 799 854)

Trust Beneficiary Interest A trust beneficiary interest under a trust, the trustee of which is a trust bank licensed in
Japan which holds legal title to the entrusted property, which interest may be evidenced
by a trust beneficiary certificate

tsubo A unit of measurement used in Japan for floor areas (1 tsubo = 3.306 square metres)

unit(s) A unit in the Trust

unitholder(s) The holder of a unit

Yen, ¥ or JPY Japanese Yen
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Konan Home Centre Kawasaki Dice Harajuku Bell Pier

APPENDIX I Location maps
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Motomachi Shinjuku Sanei Ginza Dowa
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Sun Higashi Totsuka Forest Kita Aoyama

Location maps continued
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Shiba Daimon Yotsuya KD Sun No. 5
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Offices and Officers

Principal Registered Office
Level 39, Chifley Tower
2 Chifley Square
Sydney NSW 2000
Australia

Responsible Entity
Babcock & Brown Japan Property Management Limited
Level 39, Chifley Tower
2 Chifley Square
Sydney NSW 2000
Australia
Telephone: +61 2 9229 1800
Facsimile: +61 2 9223 2907

Custodian
Babcock & Brown Asset Holdings Pty Limited
Level 39, Chifley Tower
2 Chifley Square
Sydney NSW 2000
Australia

Company Secretaries of Babcock & Brown Japan Property Management Limited
Paul Ferguson
Sarah Zanon

Unit Register
ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited
Level 8
580 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Australia
Telephone: +61 2 8280 7111
Facsimile: +61 2 9287 0303

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers
201 Sussex Street
Sydney NSW 1171

Internet Address
http://www.bbjapanpropertytrust.com
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